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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 36th (Thirty-Sixth) Annual Report together with
Audited Annual Financial Statements (including Audited Consolidated Financial Statements) of
the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2018.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS Rupees in lakh
Details STANDALONE
FY 2017-18 FY 2016-17

Income from Cperations 56019.41 78333.02
Profit before Depreciation, Finance Cost and 16581.07 12823.75

Tax

Depreciation 4758.96 4307.33
Finonce Coste 4657.05 4173.90

Profit Before Tax J165.07 434352
Tax Expenses. 205163 95139 |
Profit after Tax 5113.44 3391.13

Other Comprehensive Income 31.96 {13.03)

Total Comprehensive Income 5145.40 3378.09

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

The Company achieved a gross income of Rs.96019.41 Lakh as against Rs. 78333.02 Lakh in the
previous financial year, recording an increase of about 23%. The Company has achieved a
fabulout higher profit as compared to previous financial year. The Profit before Tax was
Rs. 7165.07 Lakh as compared to Rs. Rs. 4342.52 Lakh in the previous year registering a grawth
of 65%. Similarly Profit After Tax has also increased to As, 5113.44 Lakh as against Rs. 3391.13
Lakh in the previous year reporting thereby a jump of over 50%.

Please refer to ‘Management [iscussion and Analysis Report’ which forms part of the Annual
Report.
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Your Company has performed very well during the year under review. It has maintained the
continuous growth perspective. There has been overall increase in Turnover, Profit before tax
and Profit after Tax as well as operational performance. Your directors are pleased to inform
you that during the year your company has setup new Rolling unit for production of TMT Re
Bar under the Brand Mame "BANSAL SUPER™. During the year under review the company has
started setting up distribution channel for its products. The Company has promoted branding
of its products which has received a much favourable response from the markel.

in the current year the directors are of the opinion that the performance of the company will
be much better than the year under review as new TMT unit has commenced production and
the product is in huge demand in the market . The distribution channel will be more
strengthened and a move s derived to reach the ultimate consumer. The company weill
cantinue to contribute to its own growth and also to the growth of the economy and sociely at
large.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the payment of 1st interim dividend of
Re. 0.01 per equity share on December 7, 2017 and the same was paid to the eligible
shareholders. No final dividend for the financial year 2017 -18 is recommended.

TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE
The Board of Directors do@s not propose 1o transfer any fund to the General Reserve..

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up Equity share capital of the Company as at 31st March, 2018 stood at Rs, 22.51
Crores. During the year under review, the Company has not issued shares with differential
voting rights nor has granted any stock option or sweat equity shares. As on 315t March, 2018,
none of the Directors of the Company holds instrument convertible into equity shares of the
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Company. Your Company has not made any provision of maney for purchase of its own shares
by employees or by trustees for the benefit of employess during the vear under review,

DEPOSITS

Your Company has nefther accepred nor renewed any deposits from public within the meaning
of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies |Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014 during the year.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY
There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year

ended 315t March, 2018.

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS
Detalls of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of

the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS [IND AS)
In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs {MCA), your

Company s reguired to prepare financial statements under Indian Accounting Standards
(IndAS) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act.2013 read with rule 3 of the
Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2005 and Companies (indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 with effect from 1st April, 2017, Ind AS has replaced the
existing Indian GAAP prescribed under-section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 7
of Companies [Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Accordingly the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard (Ind As) with effect from 1st
April, 2017 and Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2018 has been prepared in
accordance with [nd AS.
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The MCA notification also mandates that iND AS shall be applicable 1o subsidiary Companies,
Joint Vienture or associates of the Company. Hence the Company and BMW Industries Group
have prepared and reporied financial statements under IND AS w.e.f 15t April, 2017,

The effect of the transition from IGAAP to IND AS has been explained by way of the Standalone
Financial Statements and Consolidated Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Retirement by Rotation

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of
Articles of Association of the Company, , Mr Ram Gopal Bansal | DIN: DD144159) shall retire by
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers himsaif for
reappointment.

Mr Ram Gopal Bansal is not disqualified from being appointed a5 @ Director as specified in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the fecompanies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14{1) of Companies |
Appointment and Qualification of Directars | Rules 2014,

The brief resume/details of Mr. Ram Gopal Bansal who is to be appointed as director are
furnished in the Motice of the ensuing AGM. The Board of Directors of your Company
recommends the appoimtment of the said director at the ensuing AGM

During the year under review Mr. Prahlad Kumar [DIN; 5174446) has resigned as director of
the Company. The Board appreciated his contribution in the growth of the company.

During the year under review Ms. Sweta Prasad has resigned from the post of Company
Secretary and in her place the Board has appointed Mr Arbind Kumar Jain as the Company
Secretary of the Company.
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Disqualification of directors

All the Directors have confirmed that they are net disqualified from being appointed as
Directors in terms of Section 164{2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14{1) of Companies
{Appointment and Qualification of Directars) Rules, 2014,

BOARD EVALUATION

The Company has formulated a Policy for performance evaluation of Independent Directors,
Board Committees and other Directors, by fixing certain criteria, which was approved by the
Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee and adopted by the Board. The critetia for the
evaluation include their functioning as Members of Board or Committees of the Directors
included their contribution as well as goard composition, effectiveness of Board processes,
infarmation and functioning. The criteria for committee functioning includes effectiveness of
committee meetings, performance review in accordance rales and responsibilities assigned.
The criteria for evaluation of individual director included their contribution and preparedness
for the issues discussed at the meetings, The Chairman was also valuated with respect to his
role. A structured questionnaire, evolved through discussions within the Board, has been used
for this purpose. Further on the basis of recommendations of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the performance review by independent Directors, 3 process of
svaluation was followed by the Board for its own performance and that of its Committees and
individual Directors. The Board was satisfied with the evaluation process.

All independent Directors of your Company have given declarations that they meat the criteria
of independence a5 laid down under Section 149(6} of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
16 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements] Regulatians, 2015,
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in terms of Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, your Company Is required to
conduct Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors (ids) to familiarise them about

your Company Including nature of Industry in which your company operates, busingss model,
responsibliities of the Ids etc Further, pursuant 1o Regulation 46 of the SEBI (LODR}
Regulations, 2015, your Company i reguired to disseminate on its website, details of
familiarization programmes imparted to the ids inctuding the Details of the same. During the
year, the Company has organised one familiarisation Programme of the Independent Directors.
The detalls of the familiarization programme af independent Directors are provided in the
Corporate Governance Report. The link to the detalls of familiarization programmes imparted

The Board hat an the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee adopted
the Remuneration Policy, which inter alia includes policy for selection and appointment aof
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management Personnel and their remuneration.
The remuneration policy of the Company aims to atiract, retain and motivate qualified people
at the Executive and at the Board levels. The remuneration policy seeks to employ people who
not onty fulfill the eligibility criteria but also have the attributes needed to fit into the corporate
culture of the Company. The said Policy has been disclosed in the Corporate Governance
Report, which forms part of this Annual Report and i also glven on the wehsite at its weblink
ie wgmmﬂmwwwm
51mem.pﬁ

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledges the responsibility for ensuring compliances with the provisions of
section 134[3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and provisions of the
SERI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended
31st March, 2018 states that —



DIRECTORS' REPORT

{a) in the pfeparation of the annual accounts, the applicable indian accounting standards have
been foliowed along with proper explanation relating 1o material departures;

() they have selected such sccounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as 10 give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the
company for the year;

{c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate acoounting
records in accordance with the prowvisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d} the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

(¢} they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequale and were aperating effectively; and

(f) proper systems had been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicablo
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE

Board of Directors

The Board meets at regular intervals Lo discuss and decide on business policy and strategy apart
from other Board busingss. However, In case of special and urgent business need, the Board's
approval is taken by passing resolutions through circulation, as permitted by law, which are
confirmed in the subsequent Board meeting. During the year under review, nine Board
Maetings were convened the details ol which are given in the Corporate Governance Repart.
The intervening gap between the Meelings was within the period prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 as well as the SEEI (LODR) Regulations, 2015,

_Committees of the Board
The Board has constituted Audit Commitiee, Momination and Remuneration Commitiee,

stakeholders Relationship Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and Finance
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Committee to work on areas specifically assigned to them by the Companies Act, 2013 and by
the Board to perform.

The details of Committees, Their composition, terms of reference , date of meetings and
attendance at the meeting have been furnished in the Corporate Governance Report forming
part of this Annual Report. There has been no instance where the Board has not accepted the
recommendations of the Audit Committee.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
Mo material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of your Company have

occurred between the end of the financlal year of the Company to which financial siatements
relates and the date of this report.

There were no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts of Tribunais
during the year impacting the going contern status and the operations of the Company in

Future.

Your Company’s Internal Control Systems are commensurate with the nature, size and
complexity of Its business and ensure proper safeguarding of assets, maintaining proper
accounting recards and providing rellable financial information.

The Audit Committee have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company
and such policies and procedures have been sdopted by the Company for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its butiness, including adherence 10 Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of refiable financial
information.
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An external independent firm carries out the internal sudit of the Company operations and
reports to the Audit Commitiee on a regular basis. Internal Audit provides assurance on
functioning and guality of internal controls along with adequacy and effectiveness thraugh
periodic reparting.

SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
A< on March 31, 2018 the Company has nine subsidiaries .

in accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has prepared
consolidated financial statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries forms part of the
annual Report. Further a statement containing the salient features of the financial statements
of each of the subsidiaries, associates in the prescribed format Form ADC-1, forms part of the
Annual Report. The annual accounts of the subsidiary companies will be made available to the
shareholders on request and will aiso be kept for inspection by the shareholders at the
reglstered office of your Company.

further as per Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the audited financial statements,
including the consolidated financial statements and related information ol the Company are
gvailable at our website at warw, bl .couin

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the felevant Rules, the Board has
constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 10 take care of inltiative of the
Company towards social responsibility,. The Commitiee make plans for CSR activities and
reviews the same from time to time. The Board of Directors have formulated a Corporate Social
Responsibility Pelicy, The broad terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Commitles are:

— Formulate and recommend to the Board, the CSR Policy

— Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities undertaken
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— Monitar the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time

— Review the performance of the Company in the area of CSR including the evaluation of the
impact of the Company’s CSR activities

— Review the Company's disclosure of C5R matters

The CSK Policy is available on Company’s website at

The Company was required to spend 2% of the aversge net profit for the preceding three years
and the company has spent the said amount the details of which are mentioned in * Annexure-
A" 1o this Report.

PARTICULARS REGARDING CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN ENCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

The details required pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 (3) | m) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 8{3) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules , 2014, relating 10 conservation ol
energy, technology absorption and Foreign Exchange Earning and oulgo form part the Board's
Report and marked as “Annexure A"

ALIDITORS

STATUTORY AUDITORS

in accordance with Section 139 of the Companiis Act. 2013 read with the Companies| Audit and
Auditors Rules) 2014, M/s. Lodha & Co. Chartered Accountants [ Firm Registration Number
301051F) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for five years at the Annual
General meeting of the company held on 18" Septamber 2017.

In accordance with the provision of Companies Amendment Act 2017 enforced on 7" May,
9018, the requirement of ratification of appointment of Auditor at each Annual General
Meeting has been done away wilth.
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Auditor's Report on the Financial Statement for the financial year ended 31% March, 2018
forms part of this Annual Report. The Auditor's Report is self explanatory and does not contain
any qualification or reservations or adverse remark or report of fraud.

COST AUDITORS

The Board of Directors of the Company appointed M/s Schan iLal jalan & Assockates, Cost
Accountants, | Firm Registration Number O00S21) as Cost Auditors of the Company for the
financlal year 2018-19 In accordance with Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies | Cost Record & Audit) Rules 3014 at a remuneration of Rs. 150000/~ plus
applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses. The remuneration IS required
1o be approved by the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and a resolution 0
such effect is inciuded in the notice of Annual General Meeting.

M/s Sohan Lal Jalan B Associates are also the Cost Auditors for the financial year 2017-18.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the proviskons of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration ol Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014 the
Company had appointed M/s MKB & Associates, Company Secretaries (Firm Regisiration
Number (P2010WB042700) a firm of Company secretaries in Practice 1o undertake the
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2017-18. The Report of the Secretarial
Audit is annexed herewith as “Annexure C°. There are no gualificatians in the Report,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As required under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, related party transactions are placed
befare the Audit Committee for approval. Wherever required, prior approval of the Audit
Committee is obtained on an omnibus basis for continuous transactions and the corresponding
actual transactions become a subject of review at subsequent Audit Committee Meetings.

All the related party transactions that were sntered into during the financial year were on an
arm's length basis and in the ardinary course of business and in compliance with the applicable
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provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI [LODR) Reguiations, 72015 . there were no
materially significant related party transaction which may have conflict with interest of the
company or which are required 10 be reported in form AOC 2.

The Company has formulated a policy on related party transactions for purpose of identification
and monitoring of such transactions. The caid policy on related Party transactions as approved
wmawdismudnmwfsubm;nm“m

Mtp:ffm.tmuﬂl.mlnﬂmﬂpﬂuplmdfmndm-
10029650a3fBcBcadala3431achaB2 1ccsacT pdf

The details of related party transaction antered during the year are provided in the Notes of
Financial Statement.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

pursuant to sub-section 3{a) of Section 134 and cub-section (3] of Section 92 of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014
the extract of the annual return in Form No. MGT - 9 Is enclosed as “Annéxure = p”
placed on the website of the company.

EM}_MMMW

Disclosures pertaining to remunéfation and other details as required under Section 197(12) of
the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
personnel] Rules, 2014 is annexed to this Report as “Annexurs £ and forms part of the Report.

Wﬂﬂﬂm

The Company has adopted a Whistie Blower Policy to provide a formal mechanism 1o the
Directors and Employees to repart their concern about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected
fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics palicy. The policy provides for
adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism and also
provides for direct access to the thalrman of the Audit Committee. The detalls of the Whistle
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Blower Policy is explained in the Corporate Governance Report and also posted on the website

have been received /reparted,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company Is committed to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and
adhere to the corporate governance requirements as set out by SEBL. The Company has Also
implemented several best corporate governance practices. The report on  Corporate
Governance as stipulated under Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 forms an

integral part of this report.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The declaration from Managing Director of the Company in respect of compliance of Code of
conduct by the Board Members and Senior Management personnel forms part of the Annual
Report

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
In Compliance with the provisions of Regulation 34 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 read

with Schedule V of the said Regulations, the Corporste Governance Certificate regarding
compllance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated forms part of the Annual
Report.

Your Company has taken adequate steps for strict compliance with the Corporate Governance

guidelines, as amended from time Lo time,

The report on Management Discussion & Analysis Report as stipulated under Schedule V of the
SER| (LODR) Regulations, 2015 forms an integral part of this report.



As required under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the CEQ/CFO
certification has been submitted to the Board and a copy thereof is contalned alsewhare in this
Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Your Company's risk management strategy strives to balance the tradeoff between risk and
return and enture optimal risk-adjusted return on capital, and gntails  independent
identification, measurement and management of risks across the various businesses of your
Company.

The Company has formulated a Risk Assessment & Management Policy which identify, evaluate
business risks and opportunities. The risk management system of the Company s reviewed by
the Audit Committee and the Board af Directors on a regular basis. During the year, no major
risks were noticed, which may threaten the existence of the company.

The detalls of the same are covered in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of the
Board’s Report.

Motices, etc., electronically to the email 1Ds of shareholders. Your Company has arranged o
sond the soft coples of these documents to the registered email 10s of the - shareholders,
wherever available. In case, any shareholder would like to receive physical copies of these

documents, the same shall be forwarded upon receipt of written request In this respect.
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Our employees are our core resource and the Company has continuously evolved policies 1o
strengthen iis employee value proposition. Your Company was able to attract and retain best
talent in the market and the same can be felt in the past growth of BMW Industries Group. The
Company is constantly working on providing the best working environment to its Human
Resources with a view to inculcate leadership, autonomy and towards this objective, your
company spends large efforts on training. Your Company shall always place all necessary
emphasis on continuous development of its Human Resaurces. The belief “great people create
great organiration” has been at the core of the Company’s approach 1o its people.

Your Company is committed to provide a safe and secure environment to its women employees
across its functions, as they are considered as integral and important part of the Organisation.
Your company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in ling with the requirements of
the Sewiual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal] Act,

2013. There was no case of sexual harassment reported during the year under review.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank the Regulatory and Government Authorities,
Bankers, Business Associates, Shareholders and the Customers of the Company for their
continued support to the Company. The Directors express their deep sense of appreciation
towards all the employees and staff of the Company and wish the management all the best for
achieving greater heights in the future,

For and on behalf of the Board
EDf.= 'j'ir‘,f'-—-
Rarm Gopal Bansal Harsh Kumar Bansal
Place: Kolkata Chalrman Managing Director

Date: 22™ May, 2018 DIN: 00144159 DIN: 00137014
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1.

(Pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Agt, 2013 & Rules made thereunder)

A brief outline on the Company's CSR Policy, including overview of projects or
programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the Policy
on CSH and projects or programs

I line with the provisions of the Compunies Act. 2013, the Company has framed its CSK
Policy wowards enhancing welfare measures of the society and the same has been
approved by the CSR Committee of the Board. The Company would also give preference
to the local areas and areas around the Company for spending the carmarked for USK
activities. The Company has proposed 1o undertake activities promaoting education and
health care

Weh-link of the CSR Policy:
The Policy on CSR adopted by the Company may be referned tn, at the web-link

hitpe www bmwilce.in/imipd fupload conduc2 CoRAI8ED | Bhe | Be 7 A8eWI3 T Tall (o) il |
Ol pef

The Composition of the CSR Committee as an 21" March, 2018

5L No. | Nane of Members Category S|
i. | Mr. Hursh Komar Bansal | Managing Director and Chairman of the Lommines
2 | Mr. Debasish Basu Independent, Non-Executive Director —Member |
{3 | M Rampriyva Sharan Independent, Non-Executive Directoe. Member ]

Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years
Averpge Net Profit of the Company for the last three financial years is Rs. 3.987.53 Lakh.
Preseribed CSR expenditure (2% of the amount s in item no. 3 above)

The prescribed CSR expenditure at 2% of the Net Profit s in Item No 3 above is
Rs, 79.75 Lakh.

Details of CSR activities | projects undertaken during the financial vear
a) Tatal amount 1o be spent for the FY 2017-13: Rs. 79.75 Lakh

b Amount unspent. i any: Nil
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6. Responsibility Statement

The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitering of CSR Policy 1s
in line with CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

Kolkata
11" March, 2018

<o/ -

Harsh Kumar Bansal
(DIN: 00137014)

Managing Director & Chairman of (SR Commities
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Information on conservation of energy, technology ahsorption, foreign exchange carnings
and outgo pursuant to Section 1M (3)(m) of the Compunies Act, 2013 remd with
Rule $(3) of the Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014 for financial year ended on
31" March, 2018

A. Conservation of Energy

The Company continues 1o give high prionty 0 the conservation of energy on an ongoing

hasis. The Company monitors the energy consumption and it takes due care in proper

wilization of the encrgy.

» The regulur maintenance of Plant & Machinery, installation of Awomated Machines and
watchful supervision results in reduction in energy constmption.

o Steps sre mken for replacing defective and inefficient equipments as and when reguired.

s The Company has initiated special drive for increasing efficiency with the lesser

conservation of energy and preventing misuse of wastige of energy.

o4 of engrgy: The Company is exploring for aliernare

s Mo mutenal expenditure was

i on energy n'iun equipments. T

B. Technology Absarption

i1 Efforts, made towards technology absorption. The Company is using new technolog
muachines for better production und effective utilization of resources. Manufacturing procdss
is continuously monitared to ensure better productivity.

i) Henefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development. impon
substitution, ete.

s Improved productivity and cost reduiction.
e Introduction of new and improved products.
s Improvement in product quality.

The mbove has helped the Company to satisfy the consumers need and busimess
requirements.

i) In case of imported technology: Dunng last 3 FYs including FY 2017-18, the Company has
not imported any technology.

. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Chitgo

Foreign exchange eamed +  Fas 931,72 Lakh
Foreign exchange outgo : Re 2147.80 Lakh



FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2018

[Pursuani to section 204(1) of the Companics Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Contpanies (Appointiment
and Femuneration of Managenal Personnel) Files, 2004]

T
The Members,
BMW INDUSTRIES LIMITED

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by BMW
INDUSTRIES LIMITED (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

The Company’s Management is responsible for preparation and maintenance
of secretarial and other records and for devising proper systems o ensure
compliance with the provisions of applicable laws and Regulations.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31% March, 2018, generally complied with the statutory provisions listed
hercunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31¢
March, 2018, to the extent applicable, according to the provisions of

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;



i)

i)

iv)

v)

The Securities Contracis (Regulation) Act, 1956 and Rules made
thereunder;

The Depositories Act, 199 and Regulations and Byelaws framed
thereunder;

The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Hules and
Regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign [Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities &

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act”] ar by SEBI, to the extent

applicable:

a) The Securities & Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeover) Regulations, 2011

b} The Securities & Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2013

¢) The Securities & Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2008

d) The Securities & Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benetit) Guidelines, 2014

¢) The Securities & Exchange Board of India (Issue and listing of Debt
securities) Regulations, 2008

fj The Securities & Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an lssue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations;, 1993

g) The Securities & FExchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity
Shares) Regulations, 2009

h) The Securities & Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 1998

Other than fiscal, labour and environmental laws which are generally
applicable to all manufacturing companies, no other laws/ acts are
specifically applicable to the Company.



We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the
following:

a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
India

b) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Calcutta
Stock Exchange Limited and the provisions of the Securities &
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (" the Listing Regulations™).

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with
the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned
above.

We further report that

a}  The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper
balance of Executive Directors and Independent Directors. No change in
the compaosition of the Board of Directors ook place during the period
under review.

b) Adeguate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Boand
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven
days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the mecting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting,

¢} None of the directors in any meeting dissented on any resolution and
hence there was no instance of recording any dissenting member’s view
in the minutes.

We further report that subject to our observation above there are adequate
systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, roles,
regulations and guidelines.




We further report that during the audit perlod the Company has passed
special resolution under Section 13 of Companies Act, 2013 for alteration In
Memarandum of Association of the Company.

This report is to be read with our letter of eveén date which is annexed as
Annexure -1 which forms an integral part of this report

For MKB & Ascociabes
Company Secretaries

ap/ -
Neha Somani
ACS no, 522
COP no. 17322
Date: 22052018 FRN: P2010WBIMZTIN
Place: Kolkata



To

ANNEXURE - |

The Members,
BMW INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Owur report of even date is to be rend along with this letter.

1-

It is managément’s responsibility to identify the Laws, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines and Directions which are applicable to the Company depending
upon the industry in which it operates and to comply and maintain those
records with same in letter and in spirit. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on those records based on our audit

We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to oblain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of fimancial records
and Books of Accounts of the Company.,

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management's Representation about
the compliance of Laws, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and Directions amd
happening events, etc.

5. The Secretarial Audit Report Is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For MKB & Associates
Company Secretaries
spi -
MNeha Soman
{Partnier)
ACSno. 44512
COP no. 17322
Date: 22.05.2018 FRN:; P210WBOLINK)

Place: Kolkata
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Rom Gopal Bansal Harsh Kumar Ransul
Place Kol Chairman Managing Director

Deied: 22" May, 2018 % ] 44150 D% 00137014
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Stmiement of Disclosure of Remunerniion under Section 197 of the Companbes Acl. 2003 sml
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Compamy Secretnry duriog the Finaneial Year 2001718
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v Relationship between avernge increase in remuneration and compary ‘s performance

The avermge increase in remunenition i closely Tinked o schievement of anmml corporste gonk,

financial and operational of the Company and sdjmstments townards incressed cost of
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v (omparison of the remuneration of the Sy Managerial Personnel (individuadly & wnally) againg the
performance of the Company:

The comgpensation for Key Personniel’s B guided by external competitiveness, anmual
performance review and averal] growth of the Company. The KMF's play a pivotal role n the growth
of the Company and considering performance of the Company during the year thes have been
secordmghy remuanerated, )
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financial year was [2% wheread the average increase (n the managerial remuneration was 13,15

The Company has tauched new heights doc % the continuous effons of managerial personnel
wirrantmg sich Increase.

The key parmmeten foe any variable companent of remneraion:
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. “The rutio of remaieration of the highest paid Director (o that of the emplayees wha s nal Ehrceton

b eceive remneraiion in excess of the highest paid Director during the year N.A

% Tie remunenition pakd bs us per the remuneration policy bf the Company

Information as per Rule (I} of Companies (Appomtment and Remuneralion of Monngerial
Peraannel) Rubes, 2014
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For and on Behalf of the Board of Dirvetors

=D Sp
Ram Gopal Bansal Harsh Kumar Bansal
Place: Kolkata Chalrman Managing [Nrector

Date: 22 May, 2018 DN DOi441 50 DN 3T
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BMW Industries Limited believes that for sustained growth and for enhancing shareholders
value, sound Corporate Governance is a must The Company adheres to good corporate
practices and is constantly striving to better them and adopt emerging best practices. Best
results are achieved when the companies begin to treat the Corporate Governance system not
a5 3 mere structure but as a way of corporate life. The Company firmly believes that these
aspects as well as compliances of applicable legisiations and timely disclosures enhance the
Image of the Company and the long term value of all Shareholders and Stakeholders, However,
Eood corporate governance practices should aim at striking a balance between interests of
various stakeholders on the one hand and the duties and responsibilities of the Board and
Senior management in overseeing the affairs of the Company on the other,

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
tmnmhﬂﬁmhmnﬁnummﬁmhlp Held

The Company's Board comprises seven Directors, representing the optimum mix of
professionalism, knowledge and experience. Four Directors of the current strength of the Board
are Independent Directors as on 31st March 2018, The category of Directorship, number of
Board Meetings attended, attendance at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM], Directarships
i ather companies, number of Committees in which such Director s a Chairperson or Member,
arg mentioned below :-

'S | Name of the Category Attendance No. of Directorships and Committee |
Mo | Director Memberships/ Chairmanships |
{including the Company ¥

At Board | AtLast | Director | Committes | Committee
Meeting | Annual | ships Chairmans | Membership

Genersl hip
Meeting g
01 | Ram Gopal | Chairman D&/09 No 4
' Bansal and
[DiN- Executive

00144159 Directar




i) Prahlad Kumar resigned from the Board w.e.f. 23™ November, 2017

if) Directorships in other companies excludes: Directorships in private limited companies,
companies incorporated outside india and companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act,
2013 but includes directorships in subsidiaries of public limited companies. Only Audit

02 | Harsh Kumar | Managing 08/09 Yes
Bansal Director
[Dthe-
00137014)

03 | Vivek Kumar | Managing 07/08 Y5
Banal Director
[DIN-
00137120)

{04 | Debasish Independe | 06/09 Yes
Basu nt Director
{DIN-
00581141)

05 | Sunil Kumar | Independe | 09/09 Yes
Parik nt Director
(DM
00884149}

06 | Rampriya independe | 0D2/09 No
Sharan nt Director
(DIN-
05304025)

07 | Gayatri independe | 02/09 No
Singh nt Director
{DHN-
07031033)

08 | Prahlad Independe Nil No
Kumar nt Director
{DiN-
05174446)

Notes :
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Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committes are considered as per Regulation 26(1)
(b} of SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements] Regulations 2015,

li) Mo Director of the Company was a member of more than ten Committees or Chairperson of
mare than five Commitiees across all the Public / Listed companies in which ha / she was 2

Director,

Number of Board Meetings

The Board of Directors met eight times during the financial year ended 31st March, 2018 on
27th April, 2017,22™ May, 2017, 24th August, 2017, 14th September, 2017, 12th October,
2017, 7th December, 2017, 14th December, 2017, 3rd February, 2018 and 14th February, 2018
All meatings were well artended. The maximum interval between any two meetings was well
within the maximum allowed gap of one hundred twenty days.

Role of Company Secretary In overall Governance Process

The Company Secretary plays a vital role in ensuring that Board procedures are followed and
regularly réviewed. The Company Secretary ensures that all relevant information, details and
documents are made avallable to the Directors and the senior management for effective
decision-making at the meeting.

Infarmation placed before the Board

The Company sends a detalled agenda folder to each Director with sufficient time before every
Board and Committee meetings. All the agenda item are backed by necessary supporting
information and documents to enable the Board to take informed decision. To enable the
Board 1o discharge its responsibilities effectively, the Managing Director apprises the Board at
every meeting on the overall performance of the Company. The Board also, inter alia, considers
and reviews Investment and exposure limits, adoption of quarterhy/half-yearly/annual results,
transactions pertaining to purchase/disposal of property, major accounting provisions and
write-offs, minutes of meetings of the Audit and other Committees of the Board and
information on recruitment of officers just below the Board level, including the Compliance
OHicer, The Board periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws applicable to the
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Company, as well as steps taken by the Company to rectify Instances af non-compliances, If
any. In addition 1o the above, Regulation 17(7) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the
minutes of the Board meetings of your Company's subsidiaries and a statement of all significant
transactions and arrangements entered into by the subsidiaries are also placed before the
Board

During the year 2017-18, information as mentioned In Part A of Schedule Il of the SEBI [LODR)
Regulations, 2015 has been placed before the Board for its consideration.

Code of Conduct

The Board of Directar has laid down a Code of Conduct for all the Board Members and Senior
executives of the Company. All the Board members and Senior executives have confirmed
compliance with the Code. A declarstion by Managing Director of the Company affirming the
Compliance with the Code is annexed at the end of this Report . The said Code may be referred
to at the website ot the Company at its  weblink LE
hittp: fwww. brmwil.co.in/img/pdfupload/conduct-

3923534 Teaf ledb1466c58eh12eBc6955ed1c. pdl

3. COMMITTEES
The Company at present has 5 (Five) Committees of the Board:-

A, Audit Committes

B. MNomination and Remuneration Committee
C Stakeholders’ Relationship Committes

D. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

E. Finance Commitiae



The terms of reference of these Committees is decided by the Board. Signed minutes of the
Committee meetings are placed before the Board for noting. The role and composition
including the number of meetings and related attendance are given below,

A. AUDIT COMMITTEE
Terms of Reference and Composition

Thie terms of reference of the Committee cover the matters specified for the Audit Committes
under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as well as
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Audit Cammittes comprises the following four
Directors, and their attendance in the Committee Meetings is glven hereunder;

5l | Name of the Director ' Position No. of Meeting(s) attended |
No |

01 | Sunil Kumar Parik Chairman 05/05 -.
02 | Debasish Basu Member 05/05 W
03 | Harsh Kumar Bansal Member 04/05

The terms of reference of the Audit Commiittes during the year are broadly as undar:

3} Review internal contral systems, nature and scope of audit as well as Post audit discussions:
b) Review quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial staternénts with particular reference to
matters to be Included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be inciuded in the Board's
Report;

c} Evaluation of internal financial control and risk management systems and ensure compliance
with intarnal control systems;

d} Recommend to the Board on any matter relating to financial management, including audit
feport;

#} Oversee Company's financial reparting process and disclosure of financial information;

f) Recommendation of appointment and remuneration of auditors;

Bl Review performance of statutory and internal auditors;



h) Review with the management and monitor the Auditor's Independence, performance of
Statutory and Internal Auditors and adequacy of the internal contiol systems and effectivengss
of audit process;

I} Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with refated parties;
|} Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company wherever necessary;

k| Menitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;

I} Qversee the establishment of Vigil Mechanism for Directors and employees to repan concern
about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of Company’s Code of Conduet
or Ethics Policy.

The Committee met § (five) times during the financial vear ended 31st March, 2018 on 27th
April, 2017, 24th August, 2017, 14th September, 2017, 14dth Decamber, 2017 and 1ath
February,2018, All meetings were well attended.

The Chief Financial Officer and the Fepresentatives of the Statutary, Cost and Imternal Auditors
had been invited to the meetings of the Audit Committes during the year under review, The
Company Secretary continues as the Secretary to the Committee.

Terms of Reference and Compasition

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is constituted in the line with
the provisions of Regulation 19 of the SEa (LODR) Reguiations, 2015 read with Sectian 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013, The Committee comprises of following four Directors, and their
attendance in the Committes Meetings is given hereunder:

s | Name of the Directar | Position | No.of Meeting(s) |
No | | attended
01 | Sunil Kumar Parik Chairman o3/03 i

Debasish Basu Member 03/03 -

|
e |
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03 | Ram Priya Sharan Member 02/03

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall act in accordance with the prescribed
provisions of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and shall be responsible for:-

a) Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recommend to the Board of Directors a policy, relating 1o the
remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

b} Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the
Board of Directors;

¢} Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors;

d) Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be sppointed in
senior management in accordance with the critena lald down, and recommend to the Board of
Directors thelr appointment and removal and carry out evaluation of ewvery director’'s
performance.

The Chairman of the nomination and remuneration commitiee was present at the previous
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to answer the shareholders’ querles.

During the Financlal Year ended 31st March, 2018 the nomination and remuneration
committes met 3 (three) times on 27th April, 2017, 14th September, 2017 and 12th October,
2017,

The remuneration palicy of the Company Is also placed on the website of the Company at the
link http://www.bmwil.co.in/img/pdfupload/conduct-

Remuneration paid to Directors



The Independent Directors are entitled to sitting fees for attending the Board and Cammittee

meetings. No sitting fee Is pald to Mr. Ram Gopal Bansal, Mr. Harsh Kumar Bansal and Mr Vivek
Kumar Banal, the Executive Directors of the Company.
Detalls of the sitting fees paid to independent Directors during the year ended 315t March,
2018 are as follows: -

. Sl | Name of the Director Il:lhwr'r | Shtting Fees
Mo
01 | Sunil Kumar Parik Independent Director Nil
02 | Debasish Basy independent Director Rs. 126000/-
03 | Rampriya Sharan Independent Director Rs, 32000/-
04 | Gayatrl Singh Independent Director | Rs. 11000/
05 | Prahlad Kumar Independent Director l Nl

Details of the remuneration paid 1o Executive Directors during the year ended 31st March, 2018

are as follows: -

5| | Name of the Director | Category Remuneration

No
01 | Ram Gopal Bansal Executive Directar | Rs- 1,56,00,000/

02 |Harsh Kumar Bansal | Executive Director Rs. 1,02,00,000/- =
i 03 | Vivek Kumar Banal Executive Director Rs. 1,02,00,000/-
Performance Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17(10) of the SEBI
(LODR), Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of its
own performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its
Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committee. A structured guestionnaire has prepared

after taking into consideration inputs recelved from the Directors, covering various aspects of
the Board's functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Commitiees,
Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and governance
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A separate exercise was carried oul 1o evaluate the performance of individual Directors
including the Chairman of the Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level of
engagement and contribution, independence of judgement, safeguarding the Interest of the
Company and its minority shareholders, etc. The performance evaluation of the independont
Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and
the Non Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The Directors
expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process,

C. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
Composition and Terms of Reference

In compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20
of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Board has constituted the Stakeholders Relationship
and Shareholders Grievance Committee.

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises the following four Directors and their
attendance in the Committee Meeting is given hereunder :

sl | Name of the Director Position No. of Meetingls) artmdtﬂ-_i
No
01 | Debasish Basu Chairman 03/03
02 | Sunil Kumar Parik Member | 03/03 i
D3 | Prahlad Kumar | Member | NIl |
04 | Vivek Kumar Bansal Member ' 01/03

The tarms of reference of the Committee includes the following:

» transfer/ transmission of shares and such other securities;

= issue of duplicate share certificates for shares and other securities reported lost, defaced or
destroyed, as per the laid down procedure;
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* issue new certificates against subdivision of shares, renewal, split or consolidation of share
certificates/certificates relating to other securities;

* issue and allot right shares / banus shares pursuant to a Rights Issue / Bonus lssue made by
the Company, subject to such approvals as may be required;

* to grant Employee Stock Options pursuant to approved Empioyees’ Stock Option Schemels), if
any, and 1o allot shares pursuant to options exercised;

* to lssue and allot debentures. bonds and other securities, subject to such approvals as may be
reguired;

* to approve and monitor dematerialization of shares / debentures / other securities and ali
matters incidental or related thereto;

* monitoring expeditious redressal of investors / stakeholders grievances;

* all other matters incidental or related to shares, debentures and other securities of the
Company,

The Stakeholders Refationship Committes met 3 (three] times during the year on 3rd
November, 2017, 10th November, 2017 and 5th Décember, 2017

The grievances are dealt by the Stakeholders Relationship Committee / Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent/ Compliance Officer of the Company. Company has no transfers pending at the
close of the financial year

Terms of Reference and Composition

The terms of reference of the Committee cover the matters specified for the CSR Committes
under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has a policy on Corporate Social
Responsibility. The policy s also placed on the website of the Company at the link
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The CSR Committee comprises the following three Directors, and the Committer met 1 (one)

time during the year on 14th February, 2018. Attendance of the Directors in the Committee
Meeting is given hereunder:

$| | Name of the Director | Pasition No. of  Meeting(s)
No attended |
01. | Harsh Kumar Bansal Chalrrman oLy01
02. | Debasish Basu Member 01/01 |
T2, |- Remprive Sharan Member Nl 1
E. FINANCE COMMITTEE
Terms of Reference and Compaosition

The Baard has constituted a Finance Committee, inter alia to take care of all the finance
matters including availing

financial assistance from banks from time to time that may be required in course of business of
the Company. This

¥ a non statutory committee,

The Committee comprises the following members, and the Committee met § (Five) times during
the year on 27th April, 2017, 24th August, 2017, 14th September, 2017, 14th December, 2017
and lath February, 2018 . Attendance of the Members in the Committee Meeting s glven
hereunder:

8l | Name of the Director Positian No. of Meeting(s) attended
| Mo |

01 | Sunil Kumar Parik Chairman 05/05

02 | Ram Gopal Bansa] Member 05/05 _J
|03 | Harsh Kumar Bansal Member 05/05

04 | Vivek Kumar Banal Member 0408 1

4. MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
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The Campany’s independent Directors had met once during the year without the presence of
the Non-Indepandent Directors and the Management Team to discharge duties enjoinad on

them,

5. INDUCTION & TRAINING OF BOARD MEMBERS

To provide insights into the Company's operations, the Company periodically famillarises it
Independent Directors through presentations, briefings, meetings, etc. The details of
programmes for familiarisation of Independent Directars with the Company, Including their
duties in the Company and related matters are put up on the website of the Company #t the

link: b o infl .
28642895¢45750684¢3el4ca5adIe0bibes Idc.pdf
6. POLICY ON MATERIAL SUBSIDIARY

Regulation 24 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 defines a “Material Non-listed indian
subsidiary” as an unlisted

subsidiary, incorporated in India, whose income or net worth (Le. paid up capital and free
reserves| exceeds 20% of the consolidated income or net worth respectively, of the listed
holding company and its subsidiaries in the immediately preceding accounting year. As an 31st
March, 2018 the Company has 09 (Nine) subsidiaries, however none of the Companies are
considered as material subsidiary . The Company has a policy to determine its matarial
subsidiary. The policy Is also placed on the website of the Company at the link

- t il.co.infi a

a. Lecation and time of the last three Annual General Meetings:

Y Venue ' Date Time Particulars  of | Number  of
| Resolution Special |
! , | Resolution |
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Passed
2014 (119, Park Street, | 29.09.20 | 11:00 - No Special
15 White House, Kolkata | 15 A, Resolution was
=700 016 passed in the
rmeatin
2015- | 119, Park  Street, 29.0520 | 11:00 Borrowing  any | 1 Special
16 White House, Kolkata | 16 AM. sum [ sums of | Resolution
=To0 016 maoney not
exceeding Rs 700
crores  pursuant
e Sections 1B0
(1) fe] of the
Companies Act,
2013, '
2016 | 119, Park  Streer, 18.09.20 | 11.00 Alteration of | 1 Special
17 White House, Kolkata | 17 &M, Memorandum of | Resolution
=700 016 Association of the
Company.
|
b. Location and time ﬂmmmwmm
F¥y Venue Date Time Particulars of | Number  of
Resolution Special
Resalution
Passad
016- | 119, Park  Street, 07.03.20 | 11:00 1 Special
17 White House, Kolkata | 17 AM. Sub division of | Resolution
=700 016 each equity
shares of Rs. 10 /.
Inte 10 equity
shares of Re 1/-
each
€. Postal Ballot

No Special Resolution was passed last year through postal ballot.
No Special Resolution s proposed to be conducted through postal ballot.
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Resume’ and other information on the Directors appointed or reappointed as required under
Regulation 36(3) of the SERI (Usting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 is given in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting.

a} Related party matters - The Company has not entered intg any transactions of material
nature with its promoters, directors, the management, subsidiary companies or relatives &lL.
that have potential conflicr with its interest during the year under review. However, the list
of related party relationships and transactions as required to be disclosed in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standard has been given in Note 40 to the Financial Statements for the
vear ended 31st March, 2018. As required under Regulation 46 of Securlties and Exchange
Board of India ([Listing Obfigations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulstions, 2015
[SEBILODR) Reguiations, 2015], the Company has formulated a Related Party Transactions
Policy which has been PUt up on the website of the Company at weblink :

hito:/dsewew bmwil.co, in/img/ndiuplosd/conduyct.
10029650a31f8c8cada 14343 1acha82 1r54c7 gf

wﬂnhﬁmmw
No penalties/strictures were imposed on the Company by any regulatory autharity for non-
compliance of any laws or any matter relating to capital markets during the last three years,

The Company believes in promaoting ethical behaviar and accordingly there is a mechanism
lor reporting unethical behavior, actual or suspecied fraud or violation against the
Company’s Code of Conduct. The objective of the policy is 1o provide adequate safeguard
measures against victimization. The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy under which the
employees are free 1o repart any such grievances to the Nodal Officer appainted for the
purpose. In certain Circumsatances, employees may also report to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee. The Policy is also placed on the website of the Company at the link:



The Internal Control System of the Lompany is aimed at proper utilisation and safeguarding
of the Company's ressurces and 1o promote operational efficiency. The findings of the
Internal Audit and consequent corrective actions initiated and implemented Irom time to
time are placed before the Audit Committea. The Audit Committes reviews such awdit
findings and the adequacy of the Internal Control System.

The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements of the Regulation 27 of the
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The details of these compliances have been given in the
relevant sections of this report. The status on compliance with the Non-mandatory
requirements is given at the end of the Report.

f) Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit

A qualified practicing company stretary carrled out a share capital audit to reconcile the
total admitted equity share capital with the National Securities Depositary Limited (NSDL)
and the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total ssued and the listed
equity share capital. The Audit report confirms that the total issued / paid up capital Is in
agreement with the total number of shares in physical forms and the total number of
dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

The Company has followed the Guidelines of Indlan Accounting Standards laid down by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI} in preparation of its financlal statements

h) Risk Management
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The Company carries a risk management process and the weaknesses if found are
communicated to the Audit

Committee from time to time. Periodic reviews are made on extent of risk minimization
measuras adopted to minimize the potential rigks.

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

3) The Company intimates unaudited half-yearly and quarterly results after Limited Review by
the Statutory Auditors as well as the Audited Annual Results to the Stock Exchanges after they
are approved by the Board of Directors

b) Such results are also published in newspapers having wide circulation In West Bengal, where
the Registered Office of the Company is situate.

c) Results are displayed on Company’s website www.bmwil.co.n. Besults are also sent to the
Caleutta Stock Exchange (CSE) for display on their intimation.

d) The document on Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of this Annual
Report.

10. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

a. Listing of Shares

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on:

Name of the Stock Exchange | Stock code
The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd |CSE) 12141 -C5E
7, Lyons Range, Kolkata - 700 001. |

b. Market Price Data

The shares of the Company were not traded at the Stock Exchange during the Financial
Year 2017-18.

Company's registered office i 119, Park Street, White House, 3™ Fioor,
Kolkata - 700 016 m—

Address for correspondence of :  Mr. Arbind Kumar Jain
Shares and related matters Company Secretary




119, Park Street, White House,
3" Floor, Kolkata - 700 016
Tel No. +91 33 4007 1704

Email Id: grbindiain@bmuwileoln

. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

ABS Consultant Private Limited

(Physical and Demat mode) Stephen House, Room No., 59
6" Floor, 4, B. B. D. Bagh,
Kolkata - 700 001
Tel No. +91 33 2243 0153, +51 33 2220
1043
Email Id: absconsultant@ysnl net

f. AGM details
Date l
Venue As per the Notice calling the Annual
Time General Meeting
g Financial Year 1% April, 2017 to 31" March, 2018

h. Book Closure Date

Az per Notice of AGM

L. Financial calendar {tentative)

Financial reporting for the quarter
ending

15t quarter ending 30" June, 2018

2™ week of August, 2018

2nd quarter ending 30" September,
08

o P e T

ld'ﬁuh af !"nlnwmhlr. Jﬁi-ﬁ- '

Ird quarter ending 31" December.
2018 I : .
4th quarter ending 31" March, 2018

7 Week of February, 2019

3" week of May, 2019

Annual General Meeting for the year 2™ week of September, 2019
ending 31" March, 2019 i

). Dividend payment N.A

k. Contact person for clarification on Mr. Abhishek Agarwal
Financial Statements Chief Financial Officer

119, Park Street, White House,
3" Floor, Kolkata = 700 D16
Tel No. 491 33 4007 1704

I.  Transfer of shares

m. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants
or any Convertible instruments,
conversion date and likely impact on
equity

During the yvear, the Company approved
transfer reguest from Shareholders,
Shareholder Relationship Committes and
RTA loak after the matter.

The Company has not issued any GDRs /
ADRs . [/ warrants or any convertible
instruments, which is likely to have
impact an the Company's egquity.
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n.  E-mail ID of the Grievance Redressal tindjain @bmwil co in
Division [ Compliance Officer
exclusively for the purpose of
___registering complaints by Investors _.
©. Plant Location * b Ramdas Ol Mill Compound, Manifit
P.0: Teleo, lamshedpur, tharkhand.
. lunglepur, PO: Andul Maourl, NH =~ 6,
Howrah, West Bengal.
lil. 6. T. Road (M), Ghusuri, Howrah, West
Bengal.
. B-1, Phase-1l, Adityapur Industrial Area,
lamshedpur, Jharkhand,
v. M-1, Large Sector, Gamharia, Dist -
Seraikelta - Kharswan, famshedpur,
—_— a dharkhand, .
P, Payment of Listing Fees ¢ Annual listing fee for F¥ 2018-19 has been
: paid by the CompanytoCSE.
9- Payment of Annual Custody Fees + Annual Custodian fee for FY 2018-19 i
paid by the Company to NSDL and CDSI
, within stipulated time.
r. ISiN ¢ INE374E01021

5. Dematerialisation of Shares

Trading In Equity Shares of the Company is permitted in Demat Farm However, no
trading in shares has been done during the financial year

Details of Shares held in Dematerialised and Physical Form as on 315t Mareh, 2018

 Category Ne "'E. Shares % of Shares |
Shares held in Dematerialised Form - 14,71,63,469 65,38
::E:LH held in Dematerialised Form — ?,?“-E.d?.ﬂﬁﬂ 34.59
Efl?:mh!ldm Physical Farm 75,911 003 |
 Total no of Shares | 22,50,86,460 | 100.00 3

t. Distribution of Equity Shareholding as on 31st March, 2018

| Particulars Number of Number of Percentage of
Shareholders | Shares held Shareholding (%)
Up o 500 | 596 59111 0.03 |
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501 - 1,000 13 | 13000 0.01
1,007 - 5,000 3 SO0 0.00
5,001 - 10,000 - - -
10,001 - 50,000 - .
20,001 - 1,00,000 - = .
1,00,001 - and above i3 22,5009 349 599.96
Total 645 22,50,86,460 | 100 |
Pattern of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2018
Category Numberof | Percentage of |
Snl'l-lr__n_g. lhﬂ:hnﬂn! [%)
Promoter’s Holding
- Individuals / HUF 8,30,12,080 3688
- Bodies Corporate 7,47,30,139 33.20
Non Institutions Bady Corporate 6.73,44,241 29.92
Total | 22,50,86.460 100.00

11. REQUIREMENTS OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS)

REGULATIONS, 2015

The Company has complied with the applicable mandatory requirements under the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and has adopted the following

non-mandatory requirements:

(i} The Board:

The Company is headed by the Executive Chairman.

(i) Shareholder Rights:

The Company is getting its quarterly/half yearly and Annual financial results published in
leading newspapers with wide distribution across the country and regularly updates and
other impartant information on its public domaln website.

L) Audit Quaiifications;

There are no audit quakifications on the Company's Financial Statements for the year ended

315t March 2018,
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v Cha and -

Mr. Ram Gopal Bansal is the Chairman and Mr. Harsh Kumar Bansal and Mr
Bansal are the Managing Directors of the Company,

Vivek Kumar

For and on behaif of the Board

Spf - Spl—

Ram Gopal Bansal Harsh Kumar Bansal
Place: Kolkata

Chairman Managing Director
Date: 22 May, 2018 DIN: 00144159 DIN: 00137014



To the Members of BMW Industries Limited

We have sxamined the tompliance of conditions of corporate gowernance by
BMW Industries Limited (‘the Company’} for the year ended 31 March, 2018, &3 stipulated
in Regulations 17 - 27, clauses [b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C, D and E of
Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Dusclosure
Regquirements) Ragulations, 2015 {"Listing Regulations”) for the period  from 1" April,
2017 to 31" March, 2018

statements of the Company.

in our epinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance
as specified Regulations 17 to 27, clausas (&) 1o (i} of sub-regulation (2} of regulation 46 and
paragraphs C, D and £ of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, as applicable

We state that such compliance Is neither an atsurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectivenass with which the management has conducted fw
affairs of the Company,

Place: Kolkata Practicing Company Secretary
Date: 22™ May, 2018 C.P. No:14154



22" May, 2018

The Board of Directors

BMW Industries Limited
118, Park Stroet,

White House, 3" Floar,

Kolkata = 700 015

w-.thtunﬁuwmmmwummu“:mmmmmﬂﬁnmlﬂm-rnmm
Industries Limited, cemify to the Board in termi of Regulation 17 (8) of Securities and Eschange Board of
India [Usting Obligations and Disclosure Fequirements) Aeguiations, 2015 that we have reviewed the
Financis Statements and the Cash Flow Statements of the Company for the yvear ended 31" March, 2018

1 Tothe best of our knowledge and beliet, we certily that:

I These statements da not contaln any matersally untre statement or omit any material fact
OF CORTNIR staterments that ae misieading.

ii These stataments together presant a tru and Fair visw of the Company's affairs and ane in
compliance with existing atcounting wtandards, agplicablio laws and regulation

i, There are no transactions entered inta by the Compony during the year which are
fraudubent, illegal or viotative of the Company's Code of Conduct.

2. For the purpose of Financial Reporting, we sCcept responsibility for estableshing and rreiirtaindrg
interrial controds and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the Internal Control Syitems of
the Company pertaining to financial reparting and we have diciosed to the Auitors 3nd the Auietit
Committee, deficiencles in the design or operation of internai controls, i any, of which we ane
aware and the stwps we have taken or proposs to Loke to fettity these deficknpipy.

3. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Cormittes:
& Significant changes, if any, in the Internal Controd over financial reporting during the year.

B. Significant changes, if any, in the accounting palicies mads during the year and the same
Pave been disclosed in the notes 1o tha financial statemnants, and

€ Instances of significant fraud, I amy, of which we have become aware and the involvement
therein, of the management ar an employee having a significant role in the Company's
Internal Control System over financial reporting,

For BMW industries Limited

S0/ = R
Harsh Kumar Bansal Abhishek Agarwal
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

DIN: 00137014



22™ May, 2018

The Banrd of Directors
BMW Industries Limited

119, Park Street,
White House, 3" Floor,
Eclkata = 700016

Deear Sirs,

|, Harsh Kumar Bansal, Managing Director of BAMW Industries Limited hereby confirm that al
Board Members and Senior Management Team have affirmed compliance with the “Code of
Conduct for Directors and Sanior Esecutives of the Company” for the year ended
31" March, 2018

Thanking you,
Yours sincerely,

For BMW Industries Limited

S -

Harsh Kumar Bansal

Managing Director
DiN: 00137014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT
o the Members of BMW INDUSTRIES Linarreg

control relevant 10 the Company's preparation of the Standslone Ind AS finaniial statements thal give a true
wmmm:mmmmmm“mmmmm An it also
bﬂmm“mmw&w :lwmnlnmmmmmmlh
dccounling estimates maste by (he Company's Cireciors, s wsll svaluating the overall presentation of the
Smandatons Ind AS financial statements.



We bielieve that lhmﬂuﬂmuhumﬂh&hmwﬂwnﬁuumh:mmw
audit apinion on the Standalone ind A5 financal statements,

Opinign

rnnurnﬁ-ﬂmwmmhﬂdmwﬂwwmﬂuHMdﬂmuﬂ:mm
Standilone ind AS Tnaneial staternants give the Hmﬂmmhllhnmmlhmnnwmmqwﬂm
Bive a true and fair wew In conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in Mdia, of the state
of affaits of the company a5 at March 31, 2018 and its Profit (including other comprahensive incomel, fts cash
flaws and the changes in Equity for the yesr ended on that date,

Other Matters

The camparative financial information of the Company for the vear ended 31 March, J017 and the transition
date apening balance sheet as at 1" Apeil 2016 included In thesa Standalone ind AS financal stalements, are
MmmmmmlmwﬁMpmhmﬂh Companies
{Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by predecessor auditor, M/s Deoki Bhiay & Co Chartered
mmmmnmlhmmmn'm-mmrmﬂ'mmum#m 2017 and
30" May, 2016 respectively espressed unmodified opinion on thote finanelal staternents, 35 adjusted for the
Compary an wmummmmmmm by us. Refignce has been placsd by us on the
uHhmnnmm&rmmmhrﬂummﬂmhmmu
satements and the report ssued by ul,

Ouir apinion is not modified in respect of this matter,
Report on Other Lagal and Regulstory Requirements

L As required by the Companies [Auditor's Report) Ordes, 2016 [“the Order™) sswed by the Cantral
Government of India in termm of sub-section (11) of Sacson 143 of the Act, we giee in the "Annasure A7, §
Fatement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Drder, to the oxtent applicabibe.

2 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that

a} mm-wlwmummmwmmmuMMﬂm
MMWMWMHWWB#MM

&) In our opinion proper booka of account s required by law have been kept by the Company so far s
Eppoars from ou examination of those boaks:

(4] mmmnm|mlnlm-mmmmmmm
SwﬁMHMM:mmﬂnmmmmwmumnm
#greement with the books of aremint:

d) s dur apinion, the Dalance Sheet, the Staterment of Profit gl Loss including Other Compeohansive
income, mrmlﬂmqumnmmnmmﬂMMpwmmm
Accounting Standards spocified under section 133 of the Act;

€} On the basis of the writton Fepresentations recelved from the direciors as on March 31, 2018and
taken on record by the Board of Direciors, none of thie directars is disqualified a5 on Rarch 31, 2018,
frosm besng appointed as a director m terms of section 164 {2) of the Act;

il With respect 1o the adeguacy of the internal Financlél Controly Owedr Fenancial Aeporting of the
Company and the apersting elfectivenes of such contraly, refar to our wWwparate REpart in "Annedure
[



Al With respect o the other matters mum:hmmﬂumlwhmdmwmnﬂ
the Companies |Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the bei of our information
and accarding to the explanations given to us:

L ﬂthmmmmmhmﬂmuiﬁwhmmh financial position & its Ind
Hhmﬂﬂﬂmmls—mfzﬂhhuﬂﬂﬂuiwmmuhummmm

i, m'mmmmmmmm including devivative contracts, for which

Mmmmmm
B There has hﬂnmﬂﬁwhﬂrﬂm“mm 1o be transferred, to the investor
Hunﬂmmdhmmhnhdwhﬂm.
For Lodha & Ca,
Chartered Accountsnts
Firm's ICAI Regictration Na-301051E
= nr' -
Place: Kolkata HE verma
Date: May22, 2018 Parlner

Membership No: 055104



'Amml"ﬂﬂnmm':wumm

MMMmmWWlmﬂumu'wmmmmmm
mﬂﬂmhpnﬂﬂmiHrmmmmm#mmanmmwmmdu
rmanmlmtrnmﬂﬂutmnmlulhﬂwmﬂdﬂ'mmuupmmm

| & The Company has maintsined proper records thowmng full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets

L mumuﬁimhnﬂuﬁmmmmmuwm%wmﬂm
hﬂulnhmﬂhnndmmmnhnrw the ttle deeds/lease deeds of
mwmmmmmmmm

i h%ﬂhm“ﬂnﬂm“”pﬁﬂrwmmmmﬂ
mmmhﬂwwumummmmhdm
mﬁuﬂmhﬁmﬂ.ﬂﬁtﬂmmhbmmmmnﬂmmﬂhmhn
been progerly dealt with in the books of sccount.

] lmud:rumﬂmwm:ﬂm#ﬂudlnmwmuﬂtmmmmﬂ
Huummnmmnhmﬂﬂmmmﬂmmmmmu
the Act.

As informed to us. having regard 1o above, there are no overdys bmpunts sutstanding In respedct of
such loans and interast thereon whers apglicable and the terms and conditions thersal s wuch,
prima tacie, are not prejudicial to the intermt of the Company.

W ntmwmmmmm;m.mmm4mwmam
nukﬂmuﬁﬁep%ﬂmﬁmﬁwmﬂhﬂﬁﬂrnﬁhmﬂm
mu.uw:m“mm,nmmummm.

m-duhlhcmwummmrwmmmﬂnﬂmmmmmmm:lm
l-ﬂhtrﬂpeﬂnllhltmpll'q'hplﬂummwhlmhmd rules are made applicobie and are of
|hwmmummﬂummmmhmmnﬁw.mmmm
MIMMMdmﬂumm:ﬂummmmmﬂn

wll nmmﬁ‘mhmnmmﬂmmmmlhwﬂmmm
mmwm&mumwﬂmﬂmmmmmM,
mmMm'mmmn:nmnmﬂp.ﬂﬁm;mmﬁmﬂmm,mm



disty, incise duty, mﬂHMmmmmmmmuﬂmanm
dups & applicabls 1o hﬂhﬂuJWMuMHm.mmﬂum
and explanations given 1o 3, thers Is no undispuled amaunts payable in respect of these which
Were in arrears as on Masch 31, 2018 for a period of more than sis mgnihs (o the date ithey
bezame payabibs.

& According fo the nformation and explanations given 1o us, the detally of diputed dues of income
fan, :ﬂuni.mm.umndw.maw.vmeﬂudm. Goods and Sefvices Ta (G5T)
and Cess if any, as ot March 31, 2015, not depodited on sccount of any dapute are 24 foliows:

Mame of the | Mature of dues | Amount [Rs.) Period to which Farum whers
statue the armmint dispute is pending
rlateg

bcome  Tax | inpome Tan 163,554,800 | F.¥. 2002 - 13 Commiétsionss  al

Act, 1961 Dernands It £}
ifppeaki)

ncome  Tax | ncome  Tax 1478980 | Fv. 2013 - 14 Commissioner  of

Act, 1961 Demands InCome tan
(Apparait)

mwmuﬂmhh&mhﬂmmmmwmm“hm
mmnﬂmmnmm:mmhnmhwhwﬂm
to banks and others. A8 explainsd, the company doed not have any koan or borrowings from
wﬁwnhmmmwwﬁmmmm

mmwmmmmwmﬂmnhﬂ:mrwmmm
IWMMJ.MWWHWMIHMH
upnnmmmu.thetﬂmhmhmbmnﬂmdhhmhmhhm
Were raied.

Wmmﬂ_mmmmuhwhdmmrﬂMhmimmh
Mmmmmhm,mmmwmmmtIﬂ
huﬂhmtmmwmmmﬂmhumﬂmum“hm
intormed of any such cases by the management

the records of the Company, the Company has paid/previded for managesial remuneration in
actordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the pravisions of ssction 157 resd wilh
Schedhule V.ol the As,

hmmnﬁmmﬂ-hhmwmnmmmmmhmﬂ
ol a heidhl comprsivy, Accordingly, paragragh Isii} of the Qrder is not applicable.

Accowding 1o the hhmmmmhumwmnmhrndmmmﬁmmﬂ
the records of the Company, transactions with the relsted parties are In compliance wilh
sictions 177 and maﬂummmmumu!mmmm
dischosed in the Standalone Ind A% financial stateemonts s required by the applicalie indian



i

o)

According 1o the information and explanations given 10 us and based on cor exarminition of
ihe records th:um-mﬂmcmmhnmt made sny preferential siletment or private
#mlﬂm“mﬂmmmwmmm.

Accordmng ta ﬂ'm{nhmulimmdamhmmﬁmlnuwhudmwrmmund
hm#hm.mmthmuhmmummm
directon of persoms connected with tham, Actordingly, paragraph 3{wv) of the Order is not
Apphicable.

i mlnmmmwmwlunmmummummn
WHM'WMHMIHHHMHIHMMIHL
For Lodha & Co,
Charteved Accountants
Firm's MCA! Registration No.-301051E
"a'ﬂlf -
Place: Kofkeata H K Verma
- May 22, 2018

Partngr
Mmmberchip Ma: 055 104



“Annenure B referred to In our report of even dote

MMMMWMMMII}HM! of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

Wi have audited the internal financal conirols ouer financlal reporting of BMW industries Limited [“the
l:mm‘:muhmumllmmmwwmarmﬂm-muwmu
the Comparty for the year snded an that date

Hwtwyhhmmm

W;m&-uﬁuﬂmﬂmmmmmmmhnﬂkmumm
mmwmﬂhmmlmmemmmhnHMMI
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013

Auditors” Responibility

Our respansibility i 1o express 0 0pinion o the Company’s internal financial controls over finantial reporting
based on our audit. mmmdwmmumﬂnummmmmuuﬂ:ﬂimm
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
H:AImmnummmilﬂlmﬂmm,umeManmni

mmmm‘pmmuﬂ;mmmmm-&qumﬂﬂumm
hmmmmmwmuwmwuﬂmmrmmm
wmmmmwmhﬂm“mﬂMWWlm
over. financial reporting mum-mﬂuunmwnmmmmuwmm
dﬂiﬂnﬂﬂﬂ:ﬂgﬂﬂmﬂhﬁulmﬁhﬂmhmﬂﬁihymm
dopend on the suditors judgement, hdwwﬂ-mﬂhmnrmmﬂw
mn#nulﬂﬁhﬂﬂmmmmmmﬂm.

We belurnve that the audit evidence we have obtained i3 sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basks lor gur
audit opinkon on the Company's mlmrﬁwmnhwmwmu

mﬂmhmtmﬁmmm

Ammmhuﬂdmm“hmmnhlmmmmtumm
assurance regarding the refiability of fimancial reporting and the praparatian of Standalone ind A% financial
Statemants for eaternal purposes in sccondance with generally sccapied counting principles. A company's
mmwmwmlmmmmmm:mmmm
nummuwuir-mdnﬂm.hu-mm:duuhmwm-mrm-.rmwmnnmw
mmmurmmwﬁumm;mmmbumunMIMHmﬂmmi:muﬂedu
Rdceizary Lo permit pregaration of Standalone ind AS mmmlmuhmummw



mmmmhlmMMﬂiumﬂm‘mmh
acardance with authoriations ﬂmlWMHmmm;mmmrmﬁ
mmﬂumwﬂnﬂpﬂmduwwm&mmuw
COMpany's assets IhM could have s material eifect on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

mmmummmmwm

MHImmmﬂhlmMmﬂmmﬂmﬂﬂmu including the
passibility of colluson or Improper management override of controks, material missialements dun T Srmor of
hmﬂMWHnuuim!wdmmuhhnwumwmmuwawwummwumumnmeﬁnmmmnm
HuﬂwﬂummmmupmmhuummmuwwMﬂuﬂmmm
mumnhmth&quhhuuuﬂﬂrmhmwmIhiﬂqrnuh.mhruwuh
the policies or procedures may deteriarate,

For Lodha & Ca
Chartered Accountants
Firm's ICA) Registration Mo 30105 1€

L0 |-
Flooe: Kolkata HK Verma
Date;

Fartnae
Membership Na: 085104
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8] inesnpies 7 L15.3.71,001 L0057 60 LS IL¥0.060
1= Financis Adiety
W Trads reosivabie L] pE ROREY. L] L& 2845 085 LT Eam ITR
(i} Cash and caak puialenty L | SiEY AT LA, 38001 B5 A0, 02y
Tid] Oehe Bank balies i LRLALOME 7412541 §E5.00. 16
{iwl Loam 1 L3612 TH5 FR g FE T LAT 4000
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B8N induntries Limited
Mandalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the yeas ended 315t March, 2018

Amount in R
For the year ended Faor the ended
LI Na. Jr-unim Notes el S ::..:n .
I |Revenus From eporations 26 9,44, 68,004,273 1,708,539 711
] ircame o 15 50,856,650 £, 24,44 684
[Total income {1+ i) 9,60,19,40,923 7,51,11,02,395%
V| EXPENSES
ia} Costof meeral coniuwmed ia 550,04 56,725 45462 15,119
(bl  Purchases of Stockin Trade TLTLES 159 35, 32.45.321
(&l (wncressel/ Oecreass in stock of finished goo, stock in
e, work-in-progies 29 (186203273} 108 20 8 14)]
(] Emphoyes benefit eopems 0 IR TLIA437 1A.50.04 834
(el Fnance coms i} &6,57.04, 598 44,73 58 Bii
I} Depteciation and imerthation exponss 1k3 AT 5K 95 533 43,07, 12 RS
(gl Other experun 1 1.67,52.12,040 1,88, 10,084,131
Total Expenyes [1¥] RS 54,75 159 T 50T
¥V |Profit before taw 10 - 1V} 716505 564 43,42,51,724
Wi |Tax Expense
[1) Currest tan I0,70,91,058 8,00, 78,502
[¥] Deferved ta- Chargef| Creda) LI (19,28,061)| ARLGD, 714
| Total tax sxpense I0,51,62.997 9,51.39.216
Vil |Other comprehensive incaome
items that will not be reciasuified to profit or low
-Rempasurement gains [ [losset ] on defired bemnefit plang 48,587,788 119,94 Faail
Ancoime fan relEing b Medid that will not be reclassified to profi
o n3 (L) £,89,830
;-.rmm Income for the year|net of tas) 14 31,9212 (13,03, 438}
D  (Total comprehensive income for the year [Vil + VilT) 51,4538 789 13,78,09,070
E |Earmings per Eguity chare |of par value Be 1 sech]:
(1] Basic ir 127 1.51
_E]_ Dilued ar 27 151
Sumemeary of vignidicamt stcounting policie 1
Notes o Stanidsipne Financial Stateements 2io43

These notes are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statempnts.

5 per.our report of gven date For and on behalf of the Board ol Drecion

For Lodha & Ca. Sa)- o/~

Chartered Accauntants Harn Gopal Banss Haruh Barsal

Firm's BCAI Regn No - 2000510 Chakiinan Mahagng Directiar
X - Di: 0184159 DiM: BOEET004

MK, Vierina

Partmer ;

Mermbership Nn. (55104 o /- sn/-

Place: Kolkata Abhishek Agarwal Arhing tain

Dute: 23nd May, 018 Chief Financial Bificer Cornpany SeCreiay
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BAAW industries Limied

trandalnne Statemant of changes b Eguity Tor the year ended Y1at March, 2018

i) Equity Share Capital
[Particulars Amount in fx.
Badance & ot April 1, 2006 115056450
during the yaar =
Balance A3 at March 31, 2007 725086, 460
Changas durng the year .
Balance an at March 31, 2018 23500 460
[1+] Other Eruity Amount in R,
Reserves and Surplus Tatal
Cagital Neserve Ercuritien Gimsrer a
Pramiium Meserve Resarve Hetained Earmngs
aLad 01083016 15,060,000 | 1066,82,56,900 TL07.28228 | L0955 20,708 | 365,005,506
it for the year - . 239012509 33.91.12.500
her  Comprehenaive income for the yea
from Remessurement of defined besefa|
ion {Hat of income Tauj . . : [13,00 4381 11.03.434
Aa o ¥LOG.3017 15,00,000 | 166,852,965, 500 30720028 | 3,13.75,37.779
of dsidends - - = (2,50 B55) (22,50, 865
am on deadends peid - . (450, 123) (.58 22
Prain for tihe year - BLALALEET 91,1040 567
Other Comprobemiive Intome for the year
aribnyg from Aemesiuromont of delfined benelie
[Pt of incosms Tax) AL,96.022 1196722
Farfetuie of convenibile Warant (Beler Mote
3613 £17,16.680 ) : A17.16.080
As ot 3108 2008 432,16 680 | 1.66,82.96,500 12.07,39,038 | 2645147481 i, 58.14.10,389
Heder Mode Mo 16 for nature snd puspose of reserves
Summary of signilicent sccounting palities i
Mptge o SEshdalane Financal Siatrments T |
Theeza notes 30e &0 iMTeErEl part of the Mandaone Financial STstemens.
As par our repodt of even dits For and on bahadl of the Boand
o). an/ -
Fo Losding & o, Bam Gopal Banead Harsh Bansal
Chargned ACcounLants Chairman Wamaging Dénecion
Fires's ICAL Rgn Mo 3010510 N, (0024355 D O ATO1A
Lpf-
MK, Werma
Fartmpi
Marstine sl e 055104 Sbs. 59/ —
Mape: Kplkats Aphishes Agarwal Arsin isin
Date: 22pd May, 2008 Chied Finangial ONicer Company Secrotary



BMW INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes 10 Standslone Financial Statements for the yvear ended March 31, 20018

Mote I-Summary of significan accoonting palicies
A Corporate Information

BMW Industries Limited (“the Company'), a public limited company, is incorporated a1 Kolkata,
in the State of West Bengal. The corporate office as well as registered office of the Company i
gitusted at 119 Park Stréet, White House, 3rd Floor, Kolknis ' Wasi Bengal- 700016, The
Company is primanly cngaged into manufacturing. processing and selling of steel products
comprising of engineering and other products and services and sctivitics related to the same. The
Company s shares are listed on The Caloutta Stock Exchange Limied.

B. Swmtement of Compliance and Recent Pronouncements
i) Statement of Compliance

The Company has sdopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS™) notified under
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standands) Rules, 2015 (as amended) read with Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with effect from April 1, 2017 and therefore IND ASs
msued, notified and made effective till the Standulone financial statements are authorized have
been considered for the purpose of preparation of these Standalone financial satements.

These are the Company s first Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements and the date of transition
to [nd AS as required his been considered o be Apeil 1, 2016,

The Standalone financial statement op 1o the year ended March 31, 2017, were preparcd under
the historical cost convention on accrual basis in accordance with the Generally Accepicd
Accounting Principles and Accounting Standards as prescribed under the prowisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies { Accounts) Rules, 2014 then applicable (Previous
GAAP) to the Company,. Previous period figunes in the Stndalone Financial Statements have
now been recasted/restated 1o make it comparable with current year's figures.

In secordance with lnd AS 101-2First Time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards™ {Ind AS
101), the Company has presented fn Note No. 42 a reconciliation of Sharcholders® oguity o
given earlier under Previous GAAP and those considered in these sccounts as per Ind AS m m
March 31,2017, and April 1, 2016 and also the Net Profit as per Previous GAAT and that arvived
including Other Comprehensive Income under Ind AS for the year ended Murch 31, 2017 The
mansdaiory exceptions and optional exemptions avatled by the Company on First-time adoption
have been detailed in Note Mo, 42 of the Standalene financal siatement.



i) Recent Pronouncements
Standards isswed bat not vet effective:
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards/ Ind
AS) Amendment Rules; 2018 on March 28, 2018, whereby Ind AS-115 relating to “Revenue
froam Contracts with Customers” and Appendix B 1o Ind AS 21 relating to “Foreign Currency
Transactions and advance considerations™ has been made applicable from finencial year 2018-19
(e April 1, 2008 onwards),

lnd AS-115 - Revenue from Contructs with Customens

The Standard reploces the existing Ind AS 18 “Revenuve™ and Ind AS 11 “Constniction
Contracts™. Ind AS 115 estublishes the principles that an entity shall apply 10 recognire revenue
to depict the transfer of promused goods or services to customers for an amount that reflects the
considerntion 1o which the enlity is entitled i exchunge for those goods or services and 1o
disclose useful information 1o users of Standalone financial statements sbout the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash Mows arising from a contract with a customer.

Ind AS 21 - Appendix B - Forcign currency transactions and advance consideration

This Appendix applics 10 a forcign currency tmnsoction (or part of it) when an entity recognises

A noh-monetary asset of non-monetary Hability ansing from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration before the entity recognises the relnted asset, expense or income {or part of it),

The Company is evaluating the requirements of the same snd its effect on the Stndalone
Financial Stlements.
C. Significant Accounting Policies

a. Basis of Preparation
The Standalone Financial Statements hove been prepared under the historical cost convention on

acerual basis except certain financial instruments that are messured in terms of relevant Ind AS
at amortized costs at the ensd of each reporting period.

Historical cost convention is generally based on the fair value of the considerstion glven in
exchange for goods and services.

As the operating cycle cannat be identified in normal course, the tame has been assumed 10 have
duration of 12 months. All Assets and Linbilities have been classified as current or non-carment
as per the opersting cycle and other criteria set out in IND AS-1 “Presentation of Financial
Stutements” and Schedule M1 to the Companies Act, 2013,

The Stndalone Financial Stmenménts are presented in Indian Rupees and all valves are munded
of T 1 nennest mipee except otherwise snted,



b. Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that wouald be réceived 10 s¢ll an agset or poid 1o transfer a liability m an
orderly tmnsaction between market participants al the measurement dae under current market
eondiiions.

The Company cateporizes assets und labifities measured #t fair value into one of three levels
depending on the ahility to observe inputs emploved for such measurement:

{n) Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical nesets or
liahilities

(b} Level 2; inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are observable either
directly or indirectly for the asset or labiliry,

{c) Level 3: mputs for the asset or liability which are not based on observable market datn
{unobservable inputs).

The company has an established control framework with respect to the mensurement of fair
vilues. This includes a finance team that has overall recponsibility for overseeing all significam
fair valoe measmements who regularly review significant unobservable inputs, valustion
adjustments and fiir valee hierarchy under which the valuation should be classified.

e. Property Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated al cosl of scquisition, construction and subsequent
improvements thereto less sccumulated deprecition and impairment losses, if any. For this
purpose cost include deemed cost on the date of transition and comprises purchase price of assets
o s construction cost including duties and tanes, imwand freight and other cxpenses mcidental
to acquisition or installation and sdiustment for l:;'.l:hl'lg: differences wherever applicablé and
any cost directly anributable 1o bring the asset into the location and condition nocessary for i 10
be capable of operating in the manner intended for its use. Interest on Bomowings used 1o
finance the construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of cost of the asset uniill such
time that the assct is ready for its imended use.

Paris of an fem of Property, Plani and Equipment having different useful lives and material
value and subsequent expenditure on Property, Plunt and Equipment prising on sccount of capital
improvément or other factors are secounted Tor a3 separmie componeis.

Property, Plam and Equipment includes spare, stand by equipments and scrvicing equipments
which are cxpecied 10 be used for o period more than twelve months and meets the recognition
criteria of Plant, Propenty and Equipment. The cost of replucing pant of an item of property, plant
and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future
economic benefits embodied within the part will Now to the Company and its cost can be



mensired reliably. The costs of the duy-to-day servicing of propeny, plant and equipment are
recounised in the simement of profit snd loss when incurmed.

Capital work in progress includes purchase price, import duty snd any directly antribuiable cos
of bringing the assets 1o their working condition, trial run expenses and attributable borrowing
cost, Such items are. classified 1o the appropriate categories of Property, Plant and Equipment
when completed and ready for intended use.

Deproctation and Amortiztion
Depreciation on PPE s provided as per Schedube 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 on written down
value method.
Depreciation on Property, Plant und Equipments. commences when the assets are ready for their
itended use, Based on above, the estimated useful lives of asses for the curment penod are a4
follows:

Category Useful Life in years

Buildings 1)
Plant and Equipméent 3-30
Furniture and fixtures 3-20
Vehiches 6-15
Computer 315

Depreciation on subsequent expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipments rising on - account
of capital improvement or ather factors ks provided for prospectively over the remaining useful
life.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values and are reviewed and odjusted s
appropriste, ot esch reporiing dute.

d. Intangible Asseis

Intangible assets are stated at cost comprising of purchase price inclusive of duties and tases less
sccumubated amount of amortization md impairment losses. Such assets, are amortised over the
usefsl life using straight line method and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication of the same

Amartisation methods, usefisl lives and residun] values are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriste,
al each reportmg date,

e.  Derccognition of Tangible and Intungible pssets
An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible nsscts is de-recognised upon dispusal

ar when no future cconomic benefits are expected to arise from its use or disposal. Gain o loss
arising on the disposal o retirement of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is determined



s the difference betwoen the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the ssset and is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Logs.

I. MNod-carrenid asgein held Tor gale
Mon currend assel of disposal groups classified s beld for sale are measured ot the bower of
carrying amomant and fair value less costs o sell.

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as held for sabe if their carrying amounts will
be recovered principally through a sale ransaction rather than through continuing use.

Thim condifion is regarded as met only when the sale s highly probable and ihie assct or disposal
group is available for immediale cale in s preseni conditkon subyect only 1o terms that ane usiml
and customary for sabes of such ussets, Management must be commined 1o the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one vear from the date
of clissification as held for sale, and sctions reguired 1 complete the plan of sale should indicate
that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or that the plan will be
withdrmwn,

Property, Plat and Equipment and intangible asscis are nob deprociated or amaortised once
classified as held for sale

g Investments in subsidiaries, msociates and joint ventures

The Company records the investmenits in subsidiaries, associnies and joing ventures 3t cost less
impairment loss, if any.

b. Leases

Leoases are classified as finance leases whenever in terms of the lease, substantially all the risks
nndd rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset (o the Company are transferred 10 the lessee,
All other leases ane classified &5 oporating feases,

Finance leases are capitalized at the inception of the lease at lower of its fair value and the
present vilue of the minimum lease poyments and o lability i recognised for an equivalent
pmcumt. Any initial direct costs of the lessee are added 1o the amount ecogniscd 08 an ossel
Esch lease payments are apportioned between finance charge and reduction of the lease lability.
The finance charge is allocated 10 esch period durmg the lease erm s ox to produce a constant
penodic rate-of interest on the outstanding wmount of the labilites

Payments made under operating lenses are recopnised as expenses on a grmight-line basis over
the term of the lease unbess the lease mrangements are structured lo incresse in lime with
expecied general inflation or another systematie hasis which s more representative of the time
pattern of the benefits availed. Contingent rentals, if’ sny, arising under operating lesscs arc
recognised as an expense 10 the penod m which they are meurrad,



i, Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets

Tangible and Intangible assets are reviewed ot pach Balunce Sheet date for impairment. In case
events and circumstances mdicate any impairment, recoverable amount of assets bs determined.
An impairment Joss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, whenever the carrying
amount of mssets cither belonging w0 Cash Generating Unit (CGU) or otherwise excends
recoverable amount. The mecoversble amount 18 the higher of assets fair value Jess cost of
disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in usé, the estimated future cash flows from the
use of he issets are discounted 10 their present value st appropriate rate.

Impairment losses recognized earlicr may no fonger exist or may have come down. Based on
such assessment at each reporting period the impairment loss is reversed and recogniced in the
Staterment of Profit and Loss. In such cases the carrying smount of the asset is moreasod o the
lower of its recoverable amount and the carrying amount that have been determined, et of
depreciation. had o impainment boss been recognized for the assed in pror years.

§-  Financial assets and Minancial Habilities
Financial assets and financial lisbilities (financial instruments) are recognised when the
Company becomes o party 1o the contractual provisions of the instraments.

Financial assets and financial Habilites are initially measarcd at fair value, Transaction costs thai
are directly attributable 10 the acquisition or issve of financial sssets and financinl lishilities
{other than financial assets and financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss) arc sdded
o o deducted from the fair value of the flnancial assets or financial labilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable o the acquisition of financial essels or
financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss are recognised lmmedistely in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

The financial assets and financial lihilities are classified as current if they are expected o be
realised or settled within operating cvele of the company or otherwise these are ¢lassified is non-
current.

The clussifieation of financisl instruments whether 1© be measurod at Amomazed Cost, at Fur
Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) or st Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
(FYTOCT) depends on the objective and contractual teoms 1o which they relate. Classification of
finmncial instrements are determined on initial recognition.

1) Cash snd cash equivalents

All highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into determinable amounts
of cash and which are subject 1o an msignificant risk of change i value and are having original
maturithes of three months or less from the die of purchase, pre considered as cash equivalents.
Chsh and cash equivalents includes balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal
e sape.



1) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measared st amortised eosi
Financial Assets held within a business whose objective is 1o hald these assets in onder 1o collso
contruciual cash flows and the contractual terma of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
1o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstnding are measured o amortied cost

The above Financial Asscts and Financial Liabilities subsequent fo initial recognition e
measured al amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR ) method.

The effective interest mite is the mie thm discounts estimated fiture cash payments or reccipts
through the expected life of the Financial imtruments or, where appropriste, a shorer perod.

3) Finmncial Asset nt Fair Valoe through Other Comprehensive Income (FYTOCT)
Financial assets are measured at Gur valoe throagh other comprebensive income if these financial
mssels are held within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
Mows and selling financial nssets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give nse on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and inlerest on the principal
amouni outstancing. Subsequent 1o initial recognition, they are measured ot fuir value and
chanpes therein are recognised direcily in other comprehensive income.

For the purpose of para (i) and (in) above, principal is the fair value of the financial aset al
mitial recognition and interest consists of consideration for the time value of money and
pssocinted credit risk.

4) Financial Assets or Liabilities at Fair valoe through profit or loss

Financinl Instruments which docs not moct the eriterin of amortised cost or fair vahe through
other comprebensive income are classified as Fair Value through Profit or loss, These are
recognised at fair value and changes therein are recognized in the statement of profit sod less.

5) Impairment of financial assets

A financlal asset is assessed for impainment st each reporting date. A financial asset is
considered 10 be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had o
negative effiect on the estimated fimire cush Mows of that st

ﬁuml}'mmﬂhkﬂﬂhﬂﬂiﬁilﬁiﬂ:illlﬂﬂ i mmount oqual 10 the lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit fsk on that financial mstrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. If the credit risk on » financial indrament has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument
at an amount equal 1o 1 2=-month expected credit losses,

However, for trade receivables that resull in relation 1o revenue from contracts with customers.
the company mensures the loss allowance at an amount equal 1o lifetime expected credit losses.



6] Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial ssset or a group of financinl assels when the contractun)
rights to the cash flows from the wsset expire. or when it transfers the financinl asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset 1o another party.

O derecognition of a financial asset (except for equity instruments designated as FYTOCT), the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable are recognized in statement of profit and loss.

On derecognition of assets mensured ot FVTOCL the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprelensive income is reclassified from equity © profit or boss as &
reclassification adjustment.

Financinl linbilities are derecognized il the Company s obligatioms specified in the contract
expire or are discharged or cancelled. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial linbility derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized n
Stutement of Profit and 1oss,

i Inventories
Inventories are valued ol lower of the cost or estimaied net realisable value.

The cost in respect of ra mnterials is determined on First in First out basis (FIFO) and in respect
of Finished Gioods and Stores and Sparcs determined on Weighted average basis. Materials and
other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost, if
the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Cost of maw materials and stores and spares includes the taves other than those recoverahle from
taxing authorities and expenses incidental 1o the procurement of the same. Cost in case of
Finished goods represents prime cost und appropriate portion of overheads.

Stock of Work in Progress includes comversion or processing costs of material pending
completion and delivery to the customer.

Byprodisct mnd scrap is valued a1 net realissble value.



I. Forelgn Currency Tramsactions
Preseniation Currency

The Standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupes, the national currency of
India, which is the functional curmency of the company,

Transuctions and Halanees

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated imo the functional curmency m the exclange
rates prevailing on the date of the mansactions, Forelgn currency monetary assets and liahilities
m the year-end are irnnslated o1 the year-end cxchange rates. Non-monetary items which ane
carried in terms of historcal cost denominated m a foreign curmency are reporfed using the
exchange e ot the dote of vansscuon. Foreign exchange gain'loss to the extent considered as
1 adjostment to Interest Cost are considered as part of borrowing cost. The loss or gain therson
and also on the exchange differences on settlement of the foreign currency transactions during
the vear afe recognized as income or expense in the statemvent of profit and loss.

m. Equity Share Capital
An equity mstrument i a contract thal evidences residunl interest in the assets of the company
after dediscting all of its liabilities. Par value of the equity shares is recorded as share capital and
the amount received in excess of par value is classified as SecuritiesPremivm.

Costs directly antritntable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as o deduction from
equity, nel of any tax effecis.

n. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provistons involving substantial degree of estimation ln messurement arc recognized when there
15 & legal or constructive obligation es a result of past events and i is probable that there will be
an outfllow of resources and o reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.
Provisions are not recognised for fslure operaing losses. The amount recognized as a provision
is the best estimate of the consideration required 10 settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, aking into account the risks and unceringies swrrounding the obligation.

Contingent linbilities are not recognized and are disclosed by way of notes 1o the Standalone
financial statemnents when there 15 o possible obligation arsing from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one of more uncertain
Tuture events not wholly within the control of the Company or when there is a present obligation
that arises from past events where 0 is either not probable tha an outflow of resources will be
required 1o settle the sume or a reliable estimate of the amount in tis respect cannot be made.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the Sundalone Financial Sutements by way of notes o
accounts when an inflow of economike benelits is probable.



o, Employvee Benefits

Employee benefits are acerved in the year in which services are rendered by the employees.
Short wrm emplovee bepefits are recognized as an expense in the sttement of profil and loss for
the year in which the related service is rendered.

Contribution to defined contribution schemes such a8 Provident Fund are recognized as and
when incurmed,

Long-term employvee benefits defined benefit scheme such a8 contribution o gratuity are
determined oi close of the year at present valise of the amount payable using aciuarial valuation
technigues:

Actuarial gain and losses arising from experionce adjustments and changes i sctuarinl
pasumptions are recognired in other comprehensive income

P Hevenue

Revenue is recognized o the foir value of comsiderstion recelved or receivable when the
significant risk and rewands of poods associated with the owpership of goods have been
transferred or services have been rendered and the amount thereofl can be messered neliabbe
Sales and conversion charges are inclusive of oxcise duty as applicable s net of Goods and
Service Tox/snles tooc'valve added tax/service tux.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to recelve pavment is established, Interest has
been accounted using effective interest rate method. Revenue in respect of claims of insumnce,
exports incentives eic. are recognized only when there is ressonable ceriainty as 1o the ultimate
callection.

In respect of comitruction contracts revenue 15 resogniced on percentnge completion basis when
completion level is minimum 10%. Completion level is the percentage of revenue eamed to total
contract value net of discount. Wamanty cost, penalties or possible losses that are dependent
upow future events are recoenized as and when these are nscertimed /mscerininahle

. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost comprises of imlerest and other costs incurred i connection with the barrowing
of the funds. All bormowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the
elMective interest method excepl o ihe extent atiributable 1o gualifving Propenty Plant and
Equipment (PPE} which are capitalized to the cost of the related assets. A qualifying PPE is an
nsset, that necessarily thes 4 substantial period of time 10 got ready for its infended use or sale.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange différences ‘to the extend considened a8 an adjusament o
the borrowing costs.

r. Government Grants



Government grants are recopnized on sysiematic basis when there s reasonable certninty of
realization of the same. Revenue granty including subsidy/rebates are credited 1o Statemant of
Profit and Loss: Account sinder “Other lncome™or deducted from the related expenses for the
period 1o which these are related, Grants which are meant for purchase, construction or otherwise
to mcquire non current assets are recognized as Deferred Income and disclosed under Non
Current Liabilities and transferred 1o Setement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the
weeful life of the respective asset. Grants relating 10 non-deprecinble assets is transferred 1o
Statement of Profit and Loss over the periads that bear the cost of meeting the obligations related

o such grants.

5. Toves on Income
Income tas expense representing the sum of cument tax cxpenses and the net charge of the
delerred tives s recognized in the siatement of peolit and boss except to the exient that it relates
1o items recognized directly in equity or ather comprebensive income.

Current income tax is provided o the taxable income and recognized at the amount ¢xpecied o
be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that huve been
enncied or substantively cnacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences brtween the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the Standalone Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
compulation of laxable profit. Deferred tux labilitics are generally recognized for all taxable
tempodary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary
differences 1o the cxtent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available againg which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Dieferred 1ax linhilities and assets are measured ot the tax rates that are expected 16 apply in the
period in which the Hability is sottbed or the asset realized, based on tax mies {(and tax lnws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of ench reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to mallow all or par of the deferred tax asset 10 be uiilined.

Deferred tax ussets include Minimum Alternative Tax {MAT) measured in accordance with the
tax laws in India, which i likely 1o give future cconomic benefits in the form of availability of
set of agninst future income: tax liability and such benefit can be measured reliably and it is
probable that the future ecomomic benefit associated with same will be realired

. Earnmings Per Share

Besic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable 1o the equity holders
of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period
Drluted ewrmings per share is computed by dividing the net profit atributable 10 the exquity
holders of the company by the weighted avenge aumber of equity shares considered for deriving



basic earmings per share and also the weighted averape mumber of equity shares that could have
been issued vpon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares

u.  Segmieni Reporiing
The Company has one operating business segment viz, monufacturing. processing ond selling of
steel wnd steel prodocts comprising of engimeering and other products and services and all oiher
activities are incidental 1o the same.

. Critical accounting judgments, assumptions and key sources of estimation and wncertainty

The preparation of the Swndalone financinl statements in conformity with the measurement
principke of Ind AS requinss management o make estimaies, judgments and sssumptions. These
estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of sccounting policies and the
reporied amounts of assets and liabilises, the disclosures of contengent mssets and labilities o1 the
date of the Stndalone financial susements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the period, Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual resuls could
differ lrom those estimates, Approprinle changes in estimales are made 0s munagemient hecomes
wware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates, Diiferences between the actual
results and estimares are recognized in the vear in which the results are known / materialized
and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes 1o the Standulone financial statements.

Application of accounting policies that require significant areas of estimation, uncerainty and
critical judgments and the use of nssumptions in the Standalone financial sttements have beon
disclosed below, The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty ot the Balance Sheet date. thm have a significamt risk of causing a material
adjustment 10 the carrying amount of assets and linbilities within the next financial yenr are
discussed below:

& Arrangemenis containing leases and classification of leases

The determination of lease snd classification of the service | hiring armangement s & finance
letise or opersting letse is based on an assessment of several Tacton, incheding, but not limited
1o, trunsfer of ownerdhip of lested seeet ot end of leate term, lesses's option to purchese and
estimated cortainty of exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to the asset’s economic
lifie, proporhon of present value of minimum lease payvments to fiir valoe of lessed nasel and
extenl of specinlized nature of the leased assel

b, Depreciation [ amortization of and impairment loss on property. plant and eqgulpment |
intangible assets,

Property, plant and equipment are dopreciated and intangible assets are amortized on straijght-
line basis over the estimated useful lives {or lease term if shorer) in accordance with Schedule 11
of the Companies Act, 2013, mking ino sccount the estimated residual value, wherever
applicable.



The company reviews s camying value of its Tangible and Intangible Assets whenever there is
ohjective evidence that the assets are impaired. In such situntion assct’s recoverable amount is
estimated which is higher of asset’s or cash gemerating units” (CGU) fair value less cost of
disposal and its value in use. In ssessing value in use the estimated future cush Jows e
discounted using pre—tux discount rate which reflect the current assessment of time vakhse of
moncy. I determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market realisations are considered
o atherwise in absence of such transactions appropriste valuations are adopted. The Company
reviews the estimated useful lives of the uscets regularly in order 1o determine e smount of
depreciation | amortization snd anwount of impairment expense 1o be recorded during nny
reporting period. This reassecsment may result in change in such expernses in Tuture periods.

€ lmpairment boss on trade receivables

The Company evaluntes whether there is any objective evidence that trade receivables ‘are
hﬂmmmmmtmafmkmﬂmmplmhuﬂhmhﬂm
customers 1o make required paymenis. The Company bases the estimates on the ageing of the
hﬂmh%hhm.cmdﬂ-mnﬁhmﬂlkmmﬂh-ﬂhlmﬂu!mhmﬂ
Experience. rrﬂuﬂun:hﬂnmdiimniﬂthmhmmﬂewuhﬁm-n,mhﬁk-
offs would be higher than estimated.

d. Income taxes
Significant judgment s required m determination of txability of cenain income and
deductibility of certain expenses during the estimation of the provision for income taxes.

e. Defined benefit obligation (DB

Critical estimate of the DBO involves s mumber of critical underlying assumptions such as
ﬂuhﬂmurﬂhthﬁnummﬂimdmmmiﬂtlmdm“m increases ete, iy
mmlmmwhmmwmm.vﬁdmh
these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the mnual defined henefit
CEpeiiars

L Provisions und Contingencies

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will
be o future cutflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash
ouitflow can be relinbly estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the

liability requires the application of judgement 10 existing facts and circumstances, which can be
subject 1o change,
lemjuﬂﬁmhrmmdhﬂimﬂuﬂumﬂhhmﬁnwﬂmlfm.h
respect of contingencies/'claim/litigntions against the Company as it is pot possible 1o predict the
outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

The camrying amounts of provisions and labilities and estimation for contingenches are reviewed
regulurly and revised o take account of changing fiscts and circumstances.
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Mated 1o 1he Standalone Financial Statements

7 'alued ot lower of cost or Net realinable v Amount in f5.
Particulary Fepie Mo, | As a0 31032018 | A at 31.03.2017 As 21 01.04.2016

[a) i iats. 1.06,75.80,576 91,33, 39,850 01, 71.43.046

(b} | Finished goods 11 B7.26,00 867 48,63.95,194 47.15,73,580

fch|work in Progress 0,72.35.701 78,72,35,701 196432134

| (ak and Spares 17,45.42,255 10,54, 85 R57 io.TaaL 7
I 1,25.31.77,003 Lﬁ“.iifﬁuﬁ 1.78,31,30,869
Notes:

7.1 Ewcine Dty included In imentary Amdasint in R
Particulars As ot 3103 2018 | As at 31.03.2017 | As 9t 01.04.2018
Fimished Goor 540,43 §10 5,30.62 629

’ 5,40,43,910

12 Fefer Nate No. 17.1 and 211 to standalona financisl statements in reipect of charge created on inventosies agsinst borrowing:

7.3 Coat of nventory recognised as expense during the year smpunted (o As. 784,42, 44,186 [March 31,2047, Rs.5,25,77.00,323)

B Trade Receivable Amgant in A1,
Particud Nobe Ne. Az at JLOA.20LE | As @t 302007 | As ot D0.DA2016
Trade Recesvables 1,08.95, 16,089 LAL 2865005 1,77 83,851 78
|_2oaosiooe [ 181385065 | 1778985178
Claseification ol trade rocedvables
Secured, contidered good - . -
Uisecured, conyidered good 208,95, 16.089 L 51, 25.6% 065 1778985 178
208,95, 16,08 1,51, 38,65, 065 1.77.59.85,178

Moty

81  The aversge credit period for comeersion i 30 dave. Complete Trade Recelvables are Mon- Interess bearing.

8.2 ﬂt of Mpcehvabile - dmount in @i,
[ Particular A5 at JLOS.2018 | As st 51092007 | Asar 0004 2016
Whthin the credi period 1,00.83.17,.08% L7859 65 363 14, 56, 10, T8
1-180 days past due 154,74 550 707,345 BA T3 6RG
More than 180 days past due 61724 010 hﬂ.ﬂl,m 1,49.51,110
Tatal 1,08, 95, 16,080 1AL28,65.065 1,77.849,85,178

E3

Ha

Refer Mote Me. 171 snd J1.1 to standsione Financial statornent in respect of charge created on Trade Recehable agasmit

BOrFawings

The company has reviswsi 4 stcount receivabio based on the financial condition of the costomer after considaring the current
BEORGMIE BViIFBRMENE cave U6 case basls.Based on such review thers does not exist juch dreurmetances reguiiring any impainment

I thess Standalone Financial Statemenis,

The concentration of credit risks in respect of manufaciured goods sold is kmited dus to customer base Deing backed by largs
number of unrelated parties. in respect of services provided, the Company's significant revenuss are derived from one customer
which m 3 well estadlished public limited company in irda and therelore concontration of creds sk s imied



Seortes T the Stbndalone Financisd Sietsments

§ :ulﬂmtw Arsrin (n M
Pameulary Hote Mg, As ot ILOOI0NE | As e JLOE MY Auat 01 04 2006
(&) |Dalarces with Dank
Ins Canrend dctoents Ao ot Ay LAL1S 25 S0
in Deaidmrd acggue 527,541 - -
M) fEwahy o busndd 1AT AT Lismar) % 14850
I"'-‘ O el | S5 8062
10 Dribeew Baok balsnom Aroant i By
[Particulars Wate ho. Aa a1 31.03.2008 ot AL B1208T A% @1 01043018 |
Finsd Dieponit with Bassl. (Masling ariginal marieity of rene than 3 1
it %6 LAL0TE B PR B 588 90 935
ELELOT £,74,33, 341 509,97 136
L
103 KEpE i Rin againad nasue of Bark paimntee ane Letver of credit
11 Leam Amoust in B,
]w Mot o Asut 1033018 | As et 3108 2047 s @i 00.04 3004
AT Arveaitives Coae
Unssrwed, comidered good
Lowrd and wibvance. o eemployei Laa iz ms 1,85 12,558 L5744 409
11 Orker Finmncial Agyets
TPartcutary Note o,
Amartised Conn
{a) | Girant Becowabie 52
il | Security Do
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Motes to the Standulone Fnancial Statements
6 Mavenon ﬁm&-ﬂm Armstumi in B
For the yasr ended | For thee yesr sosdod
Perticulars Bote No. !-LH-HI_I_ L033017
|a)  [Sale of Goods.
Sl of Progecs 535,18, 70,047 4 1800 33 4RT
(b} |hale of Services
Comverias ifdarms e i B 1,206,598 45,415
(61 |Othér Bparating Revenus
Trampomabon Chargen Recovened | A 01ee 35,19 M0.H28
sacsesnin] 77700571

Node

Gmdummimfnl'ﬂﬁmuﬂnmmtﬂm&mh:m. #NT wrd therefprn, Bevenue from operations
6.1 for tha pariod July 1, 3017 to 21 Meech 2008 are net of G5T, Revanue from Operaticns sed expensas for the viar erded 3t
March 2017 beirg inclusive of Exciie Duly are not tomparably wih comecaneding higures of year ended 3441 Mareh 3018

17  Dther income Aameand in B
Fuer b pier dnncied | Fowr the year ended
Pastieviu MetaMo. | oy ma0is 31033017
|l [inBevest on depasii BE,EDSTS B4 E1E
fb)  [Aemortiesticn of Bingncial Inttrument 4.1k R ER) 4 1075 548
fe)  |Goveramant Geani 34,780,307 T _TH 303
(@] (Prodit on wile ol Frogey, Plant a=d Equipsent 5.50.04.41) -
[2] [Lestltiey no longe Froguilied weithen back 3,00 80,189 -
N Miscefansaus income | 1,52,80000 1,15 24 917
ot L — YT
I Cowi ol Fateriah Convumded Rt b R
For the year ended | For the pear ended
|"""I||nllllllll1|l MowNe. | svoszen 31.03.2007
illn- Mateials Comumed 5,50,04,58, 175 4646215119
5500486735 | 4545215119
24 Fhrmhﬁﬂﬂhﬁd.ﬂ;ﬂﬁhmmw Amousnt in Hi
Note M. Pt the year ended | For he pear ended
11.00.2018 31.05.2017
Sock it the enit of the year
Fininfwd Good TN LR AT A0 R 55 154
&7 26 LR 45T A8,61,9%, 194
at the hegimning of the yesr
Fersshed Gty N 55 18 AT 1573 480
4,61.93.194 7,15,13,380
{incremie)f Decraass in invartories of Fanished poods, $toc-n - Trads ) 48,2063
-"H'h"fﬂ“ (AB6L.23,273 L1 ¥ 'l]i




Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

o Emplnyes benelity expense Ampunt in R
For the yeae snded | For the year ended
FRs MoteRe. | 51 033008 31092007
(n] | Salariey amd wages i7.27,00,713 L3, TIHT. 250
i} |Contribution o prowdent g ] 1.54, 6%, 644 1,25.95, 964
el [l wellane capenzes 489,34 T80 3.53.20.70%
BILUAST| 185204504
11  Faance Cats Amguni in As
Far the year ended | For the year ended
Im - F1.03. 3018 a7
(a] 'h.'rlm Enparme 43 30,23 ,005 LT LN
{B] |Onbuer Barriomwing Costy 5.16,21.693 £ 598,56 085
6,57 04, 655 AY, 73,859,001
31 Diher Pxpenses Amownt in Ba.
For the year ended | Fos the pear ended
Partioalin [t o 11.03. 2010 110937
[a} |Sonsumpton of Momrs End sqaned 65 B T reLITa
[b] |Power snd Foal B,25, 51178 31,18,95.655
i | Pt M 1,48, 5%,157 LIS AT 45
(] |F=pars o
Plant s machinery 1,65,55 580 s
Fusidmgn L1583 JLATY
Diihars 311,180,853 &7,08,25]
fei | iimience 54,654,543 5219468
ifi |Fales ond Tams 12 15,53, 86,685 118,58, 2000
(g} | Tramportasion Chages Puid 21,6451, 368 208163523
fhi |Ceeciom’ Rerwmeration 1 4 000 4.24.39 000
fij |Cumnge inwaed 4,740,592 984 50321449
il |Excsa dity paed 3rd on ok 5,144,459 833 $E. 76, ET A%
) |k Chage 2.76,87,708 184, 15, P
i [Trawsling snd conveyancs 2,08,94,400 1,52 31 E5E
jrm) | Legel and prolesscnal lees 1,17,47, 762 FLE LT
il ety Shargos 56, 3% 046 03 2%
{e) |Exthange GainiLoss LT84 r1. s |
lp) |Teisphans and commumscalion 0,04, 0957 412 638
fnl  |Hee Charges 41.50,330 59.31.758
[F] |Adverung and pakes prossiisn AR S{.B30 1993 65%
Is) |Payment io Audior 121 16,590,000 11,45 300
i |Lows on PwesimEnS R Subudiany - Heid o sake E ] 12,71, 780 -
[ul | MR ARROUY Arhefise 18.27.69580 10,5308, 357
1,67.52, 12040 1R 1084 151
111 Paymen 1o Asditos imcetes Asmount in s
Poe The Year Ended | For The Toar Ended
Fistenion) Nota e | e A1 3018 | Mtaech 31, 2007
fa) (Pt Fees 16,00,000 525,000
B} |Tan Auit Fae . 75,000
fof [Ceifcaton amd othar ropers 5,50 000 0,000
|d] |t of sapeniues i 200
L (A 14, 90,000 L1585 90




1281 Ingludes Faymant o Previous Awditee - _ Amaund im Bs.
Foi The Year [aded | For The Yeoar Ended
Jlumoes PORNS | March3n, 3008 | waerch 33, 2010
ia} [ Fees . §. 25,000
(Y |V Al Fees - T5.000
el |Certification dnd other repoy - TELODD
(d] |Redmbursement of eapenzes . T5_200
- 11,45 300
311 inclodes Rs. 14,3685, 162 [Previous yeir Ma. Nil) being peyment made 1o Sales Tar suthosties unger Setterners of Dispute
M i Tl
3213 m-mhmﬂﬂnlmmu!hﬁul1_'m_=hm'qm
| Fov This Yaad Enstind | For The Tear Ended
I"‘"‘“"“ M| Marchanams | Masch 3, 3017
Cartract Bevenue Becognition lor the yeas 1183, 165 58, 19,537
Tatal poils mdwred ard recogrosed profits for contrachs in progresy ot
the repartng date 14,44 05T 51,51070
Advance Heceives -
Amosnt of Reteniion for comrects in progress &1 ieporting fate s
Groes Mgt due from curiomess for contragl work
]:Ifnt-ﬁ Amound im Ry
For the year snded | For iba yoar andod
Farticwiars NoteMo. |\ rarch 12,2018 Misrch 31,2007
Tux Erpunse 333 20,51,02, 987 8.51.29.218
30,51,62.957 3,519,216
331 Componnniy of Tax Lapenie
For thet yoar ended | For the yaer ended
gy March BLO0ID | March 31,307
| Cusrrerl taw 10,709,058 B0 TR AGR
Delesred tan DILOGT b &f B0 Fia
Total tas experss recognesed in the Current yea 20,51, 02907 | FETETFIL)

132 Reconciliation of income Tas Expendes fof the year with socounting profit s hdlses:

Tacabie ncome difters. hom peolil bedone 1o s fopoding i the sigiemen of okt and ioss beexuse of Swer ol Income o
nupari that ses baabie o deductie  othar years and Beeme ihal 8 meve [aabie o deductibie Dhalgely # thig respec] goe oz

Tl

_ Ampunt b B,
Particulars Fou tha year engded | For the yea ended

Miarch 31L20NE Plarch 31,3017

Profit bafors Las ~T1,55,05,504 43,42 51 724
Intgrma bam moporze caculsled o0 34 G065 24,79 58,248 195,02 A% ANy
At E¥tert of Eepenues that gen not deductibie in detsemineg tasable gron
Eapamnet oot aiviwenl ir Lin g junr i, A G 208 TE
Commer mujivres 1y be alicwwd on paymess Baa ITHEET 1R11M8
Uewy | By of Eapenis fincarms 1At are deduchbien Lasbis i
dEterrmsing Lasable profit
Ceprocino ki Dt incoms im Aot 1961 1,30 54 344 AA4T O0ETE
fhect of pther o] ustmsnty L7 29 80N 4 46 75 358
incoena Tan racognesad n profit and o 20,51 82,007 988,39 718
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333 Incoma Tas recognised in Othar Comprabignaies incoms

Armowint in B,

For Ehe yeas ended  For tse ymar anded

iebagey March 31 2018 March 31,2017
e fwrrmil Lan {Changs |/ Credit o
Romesacromard of defined baneli cbagabon 114,91, 568 B85 830 |
Totad incoms La recognised other compreheniive Income 18.91.5988) 58,530
Bifreation al the o tas recaghized in Dbar comprehenass income ks .
limrms th el b rectann®ied to profe o ke .
N Thist will not be Peclaselied to profis o ioaa [ 16,94, S64) &89 A0
134 Componanin ol Othar Comprafameive Incomns
Armpasnt in Bl

Fou the yeav ended  For the year ended
i s Match 31,2018 Muarch 31,2017
BT TRl will nol be reciasaified o prafie o (lua)
Rumagauremant of defined benalil chigationce: o Tax) 31,98, 27% (1.0, 438}

.80 2 (12.00.438)
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Notes Lo the Standalone Financial Statements

42.4 Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2017

Amount in Rs.
L For thi year
articulars Notes | ended March 31,
2017
1] Net Profit under previous GAAP 15,70,71,210
Adjustments
inereate b ather mcame 25 per Efectsee interest Method &8, 338
Incteasd in Finance Costs as per Effective interest Method (3,46,00,913)
fHect of present walue of nancisl instruments 4 47 25 815
EMect of de-recognition of lesie rentaly (23,24 128)
Gain on adjustmant for gratulty amgunt recognized In othar comprshemme 10,63 258
Recognivion of deffered tax on asset base of Property, Plant & Eguapmen (2.78.31.082)
and others
2| Total Effect on Conversion to Ind AS (1,79,58,712))
3| Net profit for the period under ind AS (142} 33,91,12,508
4| 'Other Comprehensive Income for the period (net of tax) 114 (13,03 438
5| Total Comprehensive Income under Ind AS (3+4) 33,78,09,070

Reconciliation of Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2007
Thare were no material differences between the Statement of Cash Flows presented under IND AS

and the previous GAAP,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT
Ta the Members of BMW INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Riepart an the Consalidated ind A% Fnancial Statements

We have audited the secompanying Consolidated financial sistements of BMW Induitries Limited [hereinafier
refarred to a5 "the Holding Company”] and /s subsidiaries [the Holding Company and ity sabaidiaries togoether
referred to as “the Group®) which comprise of the Consolidated Balance Sherl as at March 31, 2018, the
Comobdated Statement of Profit and Loss [Including Other Comprehentive Incoma), the Conuoldated Cash
Flevws Statement and the Consolidated Statement ol Changes i Equity for the year then snded, and & wummary
of the significant accounting policies and ather explanatory notes for the year ended on that date (hereinafter
refarred Lo a5 “Corsodidated ing AS financial statements®),

Management's Responsibllity for the Consalidated ind AS financial statemants

Thee Holding Company’s Board of Dérectors & responsible for the preparaton of these Consolidated ind AS
financtal statements in tenms of the requirersent of the Companles Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred 1o as “the
Act" )i amended) that give a true and fair view af the state of affairs (consalidated financial position], Profit
of Loss (consolidated finandial performance nduding other comprehensive income], Consalidated Cash Flows
and Consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting pinciples
generally accepted in India, including the Indion Accounting Standards [Ind AS) specified under section 133 of
the Acl. The mepective Board of Dimecton of the companies included i the Group are respondible for
maintenance of adequate atoounding records in accordance with the provisons of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregutarities; the welection snd
appBcation of appropriste accounting poficies; making judgmenty and estimates that are reasonable snd
prudent; and design, implementation and miintenance of adequate internal Minanclal controly, that were
opetating effectively for ansuring the accuracy nnd complerenais o the socounting roconds, redgvant 1o the
prieparation and prosentation of the consalidated Ind AS linancial statements thit ghe a troee and fair view and
re free from mateslal misstatement, whether due o fraud or error, which hove been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated ind AS financial satements by the Deeomors of the Holding Compary, as
adoresaid

Auditors’ Responsibility

Dur responsibility (3 10 expreis an opinion on these Condolidated ind AS finandial statements based on our
audit. While conducting the awdit, we have taken inlo sccount the providiont of the Act, the sooounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included In the audit report under the provisions of
thie At and the Rules made thereunduer,

W condiscted our Budil in sccordance with the Standards on Audiing specifisg under section 143(10) of the
At Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
phtain reatonable swEuranes aboul whether the consofidated ind AS Bnancial stastements are free from
material misstaiement,

An audit involven performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the diclosures in
the Consolidated ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend an the suditor’ judgmend,
Including tha sacetament ol the ritks o matorial misstatement of the Consolidated ind AS financial datements
whethor due 1o fraud or srror, In making those risk asessmants, the auditor conskders internal financial



control refevant o the Holding Company's préparation of the Consolidated Ind A5 financial stataments that
grvE a jriee and fair view in order to design awds procedures that are appropdiate i the circumstanoes. &n
mulit alco includes @valuating the appropriatenets of the accounting pabiches used and thie reatonableness of
the sccounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the Comobdated ind AS financial statements.

W believe that the audit evidence obitained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terra ol thelr reports referred to in whb-parsgraph [a) in the Other Matters paragraph below, ks sifficient and
appioprizte 1o provide o basi for sur gualified sudit apinion on the Consalidated Ind AS financls statements

Bash for Qualified Dpinlan
Attt ls inwited to the following matter -

Note Moo 4.1 of the Corsolidated financial statement regarding non disclosurss and fair waluation of
irvvestments in terms of ind AS 100 ° Rnancial idtruments” n the absence of detads avallable with the certain
Subsidiary Companies, the impact in this respect has not been-ascertained presently,

Impacts with nespedt to above are presently nol sscemainalse and os sech cannol be commented upon by us.
Qualified Opinion

In our opinkn and 10 the best of our infarmation and according (o the explanations gven to us, and based on
the consideration of reports of other auditon, eicept for the peisible effects of the matier described in the
Basky for COuadified Opanion paragraph, the sforessid Consolidsted bnd AS financial statemaents ghe the
information required by the Act In the manner sa required snd give a true and falr view in conformity with the
SDUNTNg principles generally accepted in india, of the Consalidated state of alfairs [Financlal Position| of the'
Group @s @t BMarch 31, 200 and thew Comolidated Profit (financal performance  incuding. other
comprehendive intama), their Consalidated cach flows and the Consalidated changes in Equity lor the year
then ended,

Cther Mattiers

la) W did not audit the financal statements of eight subsidiaries incorporated in mdia, whose financial
staterments reflect Total Assets of RS 1,47 9% 86, 287 as #t March 31, 2018, Tatad Revenues of /. 17,759,517
and Nel Cash cutliows of A3, 985476 for the year snded on that date, as considered in the consolidated
ind AS Fimancial Staterments. Thete financal stwiements have been audited by other aoditor, whowb
reports have been furnished to us by the management of the Holding Company and our opinion on the
Comeolidated ind AS Financial Statements, im so far as it relates o the amoents and discdosures induded in
respict of these subikdisries and our report i termd of b secticn (1] and [11) of Section 183 of the Act in
w0 faran it rolates 1o the sforecald whdidiaria is baged solely on the roparts of the other auditors.

{h] The comparative financisl information of (he Group foe the year snded 315 March, 2017 and the tranaition
date opening bakance sheet as at 151 April 2006 included in these Consolidated ind AS financial stalements,
are baned on the proviowsly Bsued statutory consolidated financal statements prepared In accordance
with Compankes {Accownting Standardsh Rules, 2006 audited by prodecessor puditor, M/x. Deokl Bijay & Co,
Chartered Accountants, whose roposts lor the year ended 315t March 2017 and 3188 March 216 dated
24th August, 2017 and 35th Auguit, 2016 respectively expressed unmodified opinion on those financial
statemnents, as adjusted foe the Group on transithon Lo the ind AS, which have been audited by ue, Relianoe
s been placed by w3 on the asid finencal satementy and the repodt mseed thereupan for the purpose of
ihis Consplidated financal statements and the repst Ried by us

Duwr Oipimion ik not modified in nepect of the abowe mattseg



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

L A5 requited by Section 343(3) of the Act, we report to the extent applicsble, that:

aj

We have soughl and, except for the possitle effect of the matted described in the Basls for Qualifi=d
Dpinion sbove, obtained ol the information and explanations which to the best of ouf knowledge and
sl werre necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated ind AS finoncial
statementy;

in our opinkon, except for the possible effect of the matter described in the Basls for Oualified Opinlon
pbove, proper booki of pocount as regquired by law relating 1o preparation of the aforesaid
consalidated Ind AS financal staternents have been kpt to far oy appears from cir examination of
thoss books gnd the report of the oiher suditor;

The Consolidated Balance Shest, the Corsobdated Statement of Proft and Loss including Caher
Comprehenibve (ncome, the Corsolidated Statement of changes in Equity and the Conzolidated
statoment of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are i agrwement with the relevant books of
account makntained for the purposé of preparation af the Consolkdated ind AS Financial Statemanis,

in our opinion, except lor the possible effect of the matter described in the Baik for Qualified Opinkon
abowe, the aforesald Consolidated Balance Shest. the Consolidated $tatement of Profit and Lo
including Cther Comprebemibae Income, the Contolidated Statement of changem in Equity and the
Consofidated Statemnent of Cash Flows comgly with the indian Accounting Standards specified under
dectipn 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations necelved from the directors of the Holdeng Comgeany as on
March 31, 2018 and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the réport
of other statulory suditor of ity subtidisries, nome of the directors |5 deguakified as on March 31,
2018, from baoing appointed a a directar in terma of section 164 (2) of the Act;

The gualification retating t0 the mantenance of accounts and other malters connecied thevewith are
an stated in (he Basks for Qualified Opinion paragragh abowe.

With respact to the adequacy of the inlernal Finarcial Controls Civer Financial Reporting and the
operating eflectiveness af such contraly, fefer (0 our separate Report i "Annsaite A°, which i bawed
on the suditar's reporty of the Holding Company and wwisidiaries, which are companies incorporated
in india, Ouf report expreises an qualified opinlon on the adegquacy and operating effectivensa of the
Group’s internal fnancial controls over financial reparting, and

With respect to the other mattiers to be inclidad in the Auditors’ Aaport in accordancs with Rule 11 of
the Companics (Audit and Auditors) Rubes, 2014, n our cpinion and to the best of our inlermation
wndd according 1o e eaplanations e 1o us

i The Consolidated ind AS Gmancisl statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
the consalidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 34 to the Consalidsted ind AS
financhal staiements.

i, Thee Grgiup did nol, e @y Jong-term contiacts, nchuding dervative contracts es &t 31
pareh, 2018, Tor which thame wene ary material foreesable lotses



. Thers has been no delay In tramsberring amounts, required to be transfermed, 1o the Investor
Education snd Protection Fund by (he Holding Company, There were no amounts which were
required to be traraierred te the investor education ond protection fund by the subsidiaries
during the year snded March 11, 2018,

For Lodha & Ca,
Chartersd Accountanis
Firm's ICAI Registration Mo 300051

==
Place: Kolkata H K Verma
Date: May 26, 2018 Partner
Mamberehip No: 055104



“Annexure A" referred to in our report of even date

Ropart on the Internal Financial Contrals under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 [“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated ind AS Financial Statemnents of the Carmpany as of and for the
vear ended March 31st, 2018, we have audited the internal financlal controk over linancial reporting of BMW
Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to a= “the Holding Company™] and its subsidiaries incorporated in india
as of that dabe.

Managerment's Responsibility for internal Financlal Contraly

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and Sublidiaties incorporated in Indls dre
respontible for ectablishing and maintaining sternal finencial controly based on the intemal control over
financial reparting criterla established by the Company considering the eisential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Contrals Owver Tinancial Reparting ivsued by
the nstitite of Chartered Accountants of india [ICAIL Thess responiibilitios incude the design,
implernontation and maintenance of sdequate internal Rnancial controb that were operating effectively for
ensuring the arderly and efficient conduct of ity business, including adherence to company's podicies, the
safeguarding of ks assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errars, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, @nd the timely v eparation of refiable financial information, oa required under the
Comipanhis Act, 3013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility (s to express en opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audil. We conducted our swdil in accordsnce with the Guidance Note on Audit of internas
WMMMIMHHWIWWJHhMMlmHMH
ICA) and deemed o be predcribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audiy of
internal financial controby, both applcable to an audit of internal Financial Controls and, both ksued by th
ICAY, Those Standards and the Guidance Nate require that we comply with sthical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whethed sdequate nteenal Fnanclal controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated sffectively in all material
respects.

Dur sudil bwolves performing procedures 1o oblain audil evidends aboul the sdeguicy of the internal
fingncial contrals system over faancial réporiing and thed opérating effectivensss Our sudst of internal
financial controli aver financial regorting included obtaining an understanding of inteenal financial contrals
over firancial reporting, aisessing the risk that a material weakness esists, and testing and svaluating the
design and operating effectivenms of intermal control based on the avsetsed risk. The procedures salected
depend on thie sditor's judgement, Including the awsestment ol the risks of matorial messiatement of the
Contalidated Ind AL financial tdatements whethes die i fraud o sror

W bofieve that the audit evidence we e obtained and the audit evidenos obitained by the other suditom of
the subsidiary compandes incorporated in india, in terms of their report referred to in the other matters
paragraph below b sufficient and appropriste to prowde & basls for our qualified audit opinion on the
Company’s internal linanclsl controls system aver financial reporting.
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A company's internal financial contral ower finantial reporting b 2 process designed to provide reasonable
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rocords that, in reasonabile detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance thal transactions aie Fesorded & necossany o pevmil
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fecaipts and expenditures ol the company ate being made only in accordance with suthorisations of
managemant and m&mWny;MIEIMMIMMWm“
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, usé, or disposition of the company's assets that could have &
materlal effect on the finansial statements.
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Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations givon 1o us and based on our audit the Following material
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31, hNia:
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Subsidiary Companies, the Impact in this respect has not besn ascertained presantly,

A “mitorial weakneis® is & deficiency, or a combination of defichencies, In the iniernal inancial contral over
mummmmmmm that & materiai misstatement of the compamy's
annisal & intecim finaneial stalements will not be prevented or detected on & timedy batis
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Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chariered Accountants of india,



Dther Matters

Dur aforesad report under section 144301 af the At on the adeguacy and operating effectivensss of [he
mwcmwhnﬂmwhmhﬁnmwm“mmmm
EoMmpinies intodporated in india. 5 based on the cormesponding report of the auditors of such companies
mcarptated in ngia.

For Lodha & Ca,

Firm's ICAI Reglstration Mo.-301051E
Sl -

FMacw: Kolkata HEVierma
Date: May 25, 2018 Fartrer
' Membership No: 055104
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BN Irchestries Limited
Cowripdidaied Statement of Profit snd Loss For the yoaar ended 3151 March, 008

e oo

Aot im R
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[Aier income 7| 156990366 | a5 (15 B8
Torsl Income |1 = B 9, 51,99. 26,750 T.56.08,02.173
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fiif  Purchases of Stock im Trade 71165199 2543 A5 A1
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e, work-in.progress i |
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Notm on Comoddated Findrm al Hatementy dmds

These notes ane an integral paet ol the Conucldated Finsoslal Satementi
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For Lodha & Co
Charterad hooourisnts am Gopal Bansal
FI-rm'-u!-EAI'IﬂnH&-EIIHIE hairmman
Dokl DO144 158
WL Viavma
Partner
Bnmibasabig M. 055 [0e
Place: Kol Ashgnek Agaowal
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BMW INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated Finaneinl Statements for the year ended Morch 31, 2018

Mote 1-Summary of significant sceoaniing polbcies

A. Corparsie Information

BMW Industries Limited (‘the Company '), a public limited company. |s incorporated at Kolkata, in ihe
Stwie of West Bengal The corporate office as well as registersd office of the Comgiany s sifusted ot 119
Park Streat, White House, 3rd Floor, Kolkata, West Bengale 700016 The Company’s shares arc listed on
The Calcutta Swock Eschange Limited. The Company s primarily engaged into manufaciring, processing
Hhﬂﬂqﬂﬂﬂmmdwlmﬂmmmmﬂnﬁwﬁn
relnted o (he sammse.

The consulidasted fhancial stxtements relate to BMW Industries Limived (herginafier neferned G0 as ‘the
cw'mﬂhmmmmrmh-thuu'ﬂmuﬂumm

Investiment kn Subsidiaries
Place ol )
¥l wnm:' Propoftien of ownership bnlerestvoting
e vkt iiveag tion wnd | rights held by the Company
place of | As at | As at | As at
business | 31.03201% | 31032017 | 01042006
Sail Bansal Service Centre Limitesd o e lanooe o e
Bansal Nepal Private Limited® Maonufacturing | Mepal | 0.00% 100.00% | 100.00%
Confident Financial Consultamcy Privae
| Limited - N Investmnm Enclia 1000 | 100004 | 100.00%
Perfect  Investment Consslancy  Private
Limited Investment Inifin 100.00% | 100.00% | 100.00%
Sidhont Fmvest Advigary Private Limited | favestment Indin 100, D 1 ) £t I
Sidhi ¥insyuk Comosales Private Limited | invesment India J 0, M L D 1 o O
Shri Harl Vinicam Private Limiied Inveatrent India L00.00% | 100:00% | 100.00%
Nurnyans Dealcom Privae Limied Inveviment [nalka | e 0% LR 100,004
Fairplan Vintridae Private Limitod Investmsen s 100.00% | 100.00% | 100.00%%
Nageshwara Tradelmk Private Limited invesimen Indlia 100.00% | |D0.00% | 10000

"'I:Tut;'mpnjrmnlﬁtmmwimlmﬂﬁmlmﬂmﬁihﬂ
MhmmmmmquMMthumm-wh
Note Mo, 14.1 of the Consolidated Financial Statements,

B Statement of Complance ind Recent Pronoaneements
i Simtement of Complisode

The Group excepting as stated in Nole Mo, 4.2 relating to fair valustson of investments. keld by the cenan
Subsidiary Companies has sdopied Indlan Accounting Standerds {referred to = “Ind AS™) polified under




mc-mtpwinlhﬁmﬁmuﬂhsmﬁuiuhhMHtunﬂdﬂijudwﬂm 33 of the
Companies Act. 2013 (“the Aet”) with effect from Apeil 1. 2017 and therefore IND ASs issued, notified
and made effective till the Consolitated financial statements mre awthorized have been considered for the
purpose of preparation of these Conslidated finandial stalsments.

These ure the Group's first Ind AS Consoldsted Financial Statements and the dote of mamsition to Ind AS
an resguined has been considersd o be April 1. 2018,

Thnt‘mﬂlﬂldlimi:lquﬂwwtﬁimn.!ﬂltuquﬂduﬂnﬂn
Wistorical cos comvention on wecrual basis in sccordance with the Genemally Accepied Accounting
Principles and Accounting Standards as peescribed under thie provisions of the Companics Act. 2013 read
with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 then applicoble (Previows GAAF) w the Girougp. Previom
puiudﬁgmhmtmﬂdndwmhmmmwmuﬂhi
comparable with currens year's figures.

In sccordance with fnd AS 101-“First Time adopsion of Indian Acoounting Standards”™ (Ind AS 101}, the
mmmhmmu-muummmm'w-ﬂm eatlier under
Previous GAAP and those considered in these accounts as per Ind AS os ot March 31, 2017, and April 1,
HlﬁﬂﬂﬁtﬂﬂﬁﬂHmevlﬂmﬂﬂﬁFuﬂﬂﬁmwﬂumw
Income under Ind AS for the year ended March 31, 2017, The mandatory evceptions and opional
m;mwmumurm-ﬁ-mmmmmumm 42 af the
Consolidazd financial satement.

Hecent Prosumcemenis

Stundards bsucd but not yet effective;

The Ministry of Corporste Affairs has natified the Companies {Indian Aceouming Standards’ Ind AS)
Amendment Rules, 2018 om March 28, 2018, whereby Ind AS-115 relating w “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers™ and Appendix B to Ind A% 21 relating to “Foreign Carrency Tramactions and advance
comsiderutions™ has been made spplicable from financial year 201819 (Le. April 1, 2018 onwardu).

Ind AS-115 - Revenne from Caniracts with Customers

Thswﬂphﬂth;ﬁulmlulﬁll*ﬂ:m"ﬂdldhﬁll"cmmﬂmﬂm". Imd AS
IIEmﬁmhihp-hdphm‘mﬂyﬂnHwh:nmmph-mhmhmmﬂ
wmmnmwmm-mummmwummmma
entltled b exchange for those goods or services and to disclase Lseful informuation 1 users of Comsalidated
financial statements about the nafire, smount, liming and uncertamgy of reverme and cash flows ansing
from & camrnet with @ Customer.

mﬁ::—wuhu-rmmu_mmmmmm

This Appendin applies 1o o foreign currency irmnsaction {of past of it) when an entity recognises & non-
mmummwlhmmmwwwﬂmﬂtm
umuﬂwmmm‘mnm:umﬂm

Thuﬂmuphruluﬂim:hrrrquhmmmnrn“ndHdﬁu:lunmt.‘mmlhhnd Financial
Shitemenis.



. Significant Accvunting Policies
. Ranis of Preparation

mmFmIthmwuﬁrhWMMmmﬂ
basls excepd cenain Enuth!hﬂnm:hdmmmdhhm-—nfﬂhﬂmﬂdhﬁummdm
il the end of each reporting peniod.

Hhhui:ﬂmmuﬂdmhmﬂlrhﬂmhmrnmﬂhwiimhndun#h
goods and wervices.

mmgﬂmﬂq:hmmhummmhmmhmhmmﬁmhwm
nl'l!MAllmﬂmemlm:mﬂﬂdnmmmupﬁ:m
:thduﬂnu-hnrilmmhmuﬁl'ﬁﬂnnhnnrfm:idw*nﬁmulmlh

Companies Act, 13,

mwwwm-umauumﬂmmnmﬂuEu
menrest rupee cucept otherwise stated.

b Folr Valuee Messuremeni

Fair vilue is the price that would be received 1o scll & pakEt of paid 10 pranafer 8 fiabilny s an onderly
iramaaction between miske! participants 81 the measurement date under curment market conditions.

The Croup calegorizes sssers and Fabilities measured ot falr value it onie ol three bevels depending on
the ability to observe inputs employed for such messurgment:

() Level I;hphmmﬂphﬂ;w-qum in active markets for identical assets or lasbilities.

(b} Level hﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁnmﬂm-iﬁuﬂdmh ievel | sha are observabls eliher dirscily or
indirectly for the asset or linbility.
l:rit.ml:l.-Mhhuwmuwuhﬂmuhﬂdum&mﬁn{wmh
imputel

MEmhuuﬂﬁmmﬁmwﬁuhﬁmuhmﬂﬁrmum
imelsdes & finance t=am that has overall responaibility fior overseeing ull wignificant falr value
wmwhmmmwmmmmummmmuw
hicrarchy under which the aluation should be classified

e Consolidation Procedure
mcmmmrmﬂuwhummhmmmmhwmh

m#ﬁ!lﬂnTmHﬁdmeﬁm:m"uwﬁdmﬂmmm Samhidords)
Rufes. 2015 {as amented).



Subsidinries

L

wm“mmmnmmmmﬂﬂhcmﬂhmm
mmhmﬁ.uhmﬂnmmﬂﬂnm&mhhﬂmﬂhﬂwhﬂﬂm
s has the abilily 1 sffec those retums through o

n  Power over Ui Inwsites

b Exposare or rights w variable returns from its involvernent with the invesies

g The ability to use its power over the invesiee to affect ils returms

Subsidiaries are consolidaied from the date control over the subsidiory i scquired and they are
discontinued fram the dare of cessation of comtrod,

"

il

(L8

¥

Thﬁnqmﬂimhﬂumﬂmnfhﬁmmﬂnmhﬂhhh:ﬂm.
lhr-hvﬁumﬂﬂﬂiunhydﬁntupdnhhﬂvﬂmﬂm:m:rmﬂ
lahilities. revenue and expenses s per the respestive fmancial statements. beira group
balances, iiMra group transsctions and the unrealised profin on socks aring out of intra
grap transaction have been elimmated,

The consolidated financial sislements are preposed using uniform sccounting policies for
simiilas iaterial tmsactions and other events in similar clreumtances othorwise as uated
elsewhere.

The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiaries. over the not assets al the
time of acquisition of shares i the subsidinries is recopnised in the comolidated fnancial
statemems @3 Goodwill or Capital reserve ms the case may be, The nid poodwill B no
amortised. however it is tested for impairment ot cach balance shoet date and impairment lows,
if anry in recognised i the consolidated fimancial statements.

Ran-coatrolling imtorest's share of met profit of subsidisries for the year i |dentified und
adjusted against the revenur of the Group in order to armive al the net revenue siribatable o
lhmmﬁﬂﬂnmw.ﬁmﬂhnmlhrﬂlmhﬂwﬂi‘imﬂh
nifjusicd in owner's interest

hﬂ&ﬂﬂqmﬂmﬂmmufnﬂﬂﬂ is ddentilied and presented in the
Consolidnted Balance Sheer seporate from lkabilites and the equity of the Cinpany's
shareholders.

Mg iroblimg Tsierest

wmmwmwﬂwurmmmmm-ﬂu
ansety in subsiduaries that s not atributable to the Company's owners,

Mon-controllig interests are initially meassred at propestionate share on the date of acquisition of the

muwmmmmmm.wummmmu

mﬁurﬂuwmmﬁmnmﬂhmnmumhhﬂnm
proportioants chare of subsequent changes |8 equity.



Busimess Combination and Gondwill

In sccordance with Tnd AS. 101 provisions related 1o first time adoption, the Group has elected o opply
Ind AS sceounting for business combirations prospectively from April 1, 2018, As such. Indian GAAP
halunces relating b0 business combinatians entered bnto before that date, nclisling goodwill, kave been
carried forwand with minimal sdjustment,

The Group except for combunation of groap entities which are ander comnon control ipplies the
acquisition method in accounting for buviness combinations. The consideration tramsderred by the
Giroup to obtain control of & subsidiary is calvulsied s the sum of the scquivition-date fair values of
asaets iransferved, linbilltkes Incrred sid the equity macrests issoed by the Groap, which inclades the
fair valoe of any mssct or Rability arising from 2 contingent consideration armangement. Acquisition
cun mre eapensed as Incarred. Axsets acquired and Habilsties sssamed are generally measured o1 their
acquisifion date fair values,

In case of combination of entities under control, business combination are accounted for under pooling
af inferest method whereby the mssers and lisbilities are combined al the camying amount and no
sdjustments are made 18 reflect their flir values or recognive any tew assets o labelities

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured ot cost bess any accumulated impairment hosses. For the
mﬁwmmmmmmmhmmm
dute. pllocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units that are expected to benefii from the
combimation, imespective of whether ofhér atsets or ligbilitien of the scquires are assigned to those
iniis.

d.  Property Plant anid Equipment (FFE)

Hm.mﬂm;mnm-murmiMMn&mm
theretn Jess accumulated depreciation and impalrment kosses, ifany, For this purpose cost inclide deemied
cost on the date of amsition nd comprises purchase price of mset or it comstruction com including
duties and taxes, imward freight and other expenses incidental to acquisition o wstallation and adjustment
for exchange differences wherever applicsble and sy cou diseelly sitributable to bring the sset into the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of opersting in the manner mtended for ity wse.
Interest on Borrowings used 1o finance the construction of qualifying sssets are caputalised as part of cost
of the aaset unitill such time that the asset o ready for its intended we.

huﬂnuﬂhm_rmﬂﬁmhﬂqmwﬂwﬂmﬂﬂhﬂ
subsequent expenditisre on Property, Plant and Equipment arksing on sccount of capital improvement or
oiher factors are acciunted for &S weparaie compaonenrs.

Property. Plant and Equipment includes spare, wand by equipmenis snd servicing equipments which ere
expected to bo umed for @ period more than twelve months mnd meets the recognition criteria of Flant,
Mﬂwmmdwumﬂumﬂm.mﬂmh
Wﬁﬂhﬂmhmﬂhmﬂhhnﬂhhhhwkhnﬂhnﬁdhﬂ
within the part will flow to the Group snd its cost ¢an be messared reliably, The costs of the day-to-day
servicing of propeny, plant and equipment are recagnised in the satement of profit and loss when
incurred.

Capital wark i progress nclades purchae price, fmport duty and any directly attributable cost of hringing
e assets. bo their working condition, mrial nm expenses and i ratable borrowing cost. Such items. ar



classified to the appropriste caiegories of Property. Plant and Equipment when compieted and ready for
imiended s,

Depreciation and Amartizstion

Ehepreciation on PIE i provided ss per Schedule 1| of the Companies Act. 2013 en wrinen down valise
methad,

Depreciation on Property, Plan and Equipments commences when the assets ane ready for thelr imiended
use. Pased on abowve, the estimated usefisl lives of assets for the curment periiod ane as follows:

Category Usatul Life in ywars
 Bulding:. E

Blant and Equipmant 3-30

Eurniture and fiatores 330

Wehiches E-15

Carmputer 315

Drepreciation an subsequent expesnditirs on Property, Plast and Equipments riving on  sceotm? of caplial
improvement or other factors s provided for prospectively over the remaining wseful life.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and recidual values nnd are reviewed and adjusted os appropriste, at
cach reporting date.

e Intangible Asseis

Intangible assets are stated w0 cost comprising of parchase price inchusive of duties and Bxes bess
sccumulated amount of smortization and mpairment losses. Such assets, are amortised over the wseful life
using straight line method and asscased for impairment whenever there i an indication of the samse,

Amortisstion methods, seful lives snd residual values are reviewed, and adjusted s appropriate, ot each
reporting dete.

I Derecognition of Tangible and Intangilile sl

An ftem af Property, Plant and Equipment and Intnngihle macts i de-recognised upon disposal or when
no future ecooomic benefiis are expected to arise from #s use or disposal. Gain o loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of wn ftem of Propery. Plant snd Equipment s dotermined as the difference
between the sakes proceeds and the carrving amount of the saset and 1 recogmised n the Statement of

Proofli e Lo

g Non-current assets bebil for sake
Non current asset or dispodal groups classified as held for sale ure messured at the lower of caying

amousl and (hir value lew costs io sell.

Non-currenr assers of disposal grougs are classified @ held for sle if their camying amounts will be
recevered principally through & sale tranraction rather than throagh continming we.



This condition is regarded as met only when the sale i highly probable and the auet or disposal group is
available for Emmedise sale in itx present condition sabject caly 1o lesim that are usual and casumary for
sales of such sssets. Manssement must be committed to the sale, which should be expected 1o gualify fior
recognition as 4 completed sale within ene year from the date of ¢lassification as held for sale. and actions
required 10 complete the plan of sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes 1o the plan
will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

Property, Plant and Equipment and intanjeble ssets are not depreciated or amortized once classified a5
held for sale,

b Ievestmenks b gsseciales sad joint vertans
The Giroup records the imvestments in pssociuies and joimi ventuares al cost less impairment ke if any.
L Lenses

lcases are cloasified os finonce leases wheoever in terms of the lesse, subwtantially afl the risks and
rewards incidemal to the ownership of an ssset b the Group are rensfermed to the lessee All other leases
ure classified a3 operaling loases,

Finance leases are capindized ot the inception of the bease a fower of is fair valee and the present valie af
the minimum kease payments and o lesbilits s recognised for an equivalent amount. Any initial direet costs
of the lessee are ndded 1o the amoum ncognised as an asset.  Each leme payments ae apportioned
between Minance charge ond reduction of the lease |sabiilty. The finance charge i aflocated o each persod
daming the lease term 3o as 1o produce & constant periodic rabe of ierest on the oalsisnding smount of the
liahilitses.

Payments made under operating letses are recoghised is expemses on a straighi-line basis over the term of
the legse unless the lewse srampements sre structured to increase in line with expected general inflatkon or
amother wystematic basis which is more representative of the fime pamtem of the heneflis availed
Contingent rentals, if sy, ariving under operating leases gre recopnbsed & un expense in the period in
which they are irciermed,

j-  Impairment of Tongible and Intangible Asscis

Tangible and Intangible sssets are reviewed ot each Balance Sheet dute for impairment. n case events and
wmmnqm,mmﬂmmumimmem is
recogniaed in e statement of profit and low, whenever the carrying amount of asscts either helonging 1o
Cash Generating Unit (COU) or stherwine exceeds recovernhhe amaunt. The recoverable amoant is the
higher of assets fair value lexs cost of disposal and is valise in we. In assessing value in usc, the evimated
fisture cath flows from the wse of the seicts aie discownted o thelr present value al approprisic mbe.

Impairment losses recognized earbier may no Jonger cxist or may have come down. Based on weh
aseessment At esch reporting periedd the impainment loss i reversed and recopnized m the Stement of
Profit and Loss. In such cases the carrying ameunt of the asset is incressed 1o the lower of ils recoveruble
ot and the carrying amount that have been derermined, et of deprecintion. had no impairment boss
been necogabned fos (he wasct i prior yean.



k. Financinl axsets and finuncial labilitie
Hmhﬂm-ﬂhuuﬂmuhtrmmm“mﬁﬂlﬂmwﬂmhmml
party to the contractial provisions of the instruments.

Financial sssets and financisl Fabilities are initially mesured at fair value, Tromsasction costs that are
directly atiributable t the scquisition or issue of financial muets and financial linbilitics (other than
Mﬂmmmﬁnwhn-hhuﬂwﬂwqhﬁﬂﬂﬂllﬂlﬂﬂhﬁmm
ihe fair valoe of the hmﬂmuﬁndﬂﬂﬁﬂﬂnnwnﬂhhmﬁwﬂn
?rﬂﬁmﬁmdbﬂrwhlmhmmmnumﬂnmmmrﬂmiﬂ fambrifivies at fadr
wwmmwhunmwm&hhw:immmﬂlm

The financial assets and financinl liabifites sre classified a5 curment if they are expected to be realised or
vetthed within opersting cycle of the Gitougt of otherwise these are clussified as pon-current

The clussificarion of fmancial bnstruments whether to be measured 8 Amorized Cost, at Fair Value
wrunudmwmmumvmwmnmmu Income (FVTOLUT)
Mnﬁlw-ﬂmﬂﬂlmlnmmmmmdwm
are determined on inkial recognition,

1) Cosh and cash equivalents

AN hiighly liquid Finmncinl instruments, which are readity conventible into determinsble amourty of cash
nﬂﬂklnnﬂnﬁmuwwiﬂ:mmhurcmphuuumnmuﬂwmmmm
mﬂ:wmmmmﬂwﬂﬂnnﬂm-mﬁ-ﬂvﬂmtuh-ﬂ eanly egquivalents
h:iudﬁhln:qwhthﬂhwiihﬂmﬂﬂmdh*mndw.

H Financinl Assets and Financial Lishilitbes meavared st amortised cost
Fﬂﬁﬂhﬂlhﬂﬂﬂiﬂ.bﬂlmhﬁﬂﬂiﬂﬂiwhhhﬂﬂmmhuﬁrhw
comtractusl cas flows and the comtractual termn of the financial asset give rive an specified dates 1o cuah
flows that are selely paynsents of principal anil interest on the principal amount culstanding e mesured
b mmartized oot

ThﬂumeHMuﬂHmullMHﬂnMnhﬂhirmpﬂhnnmﬂ#
amortized cost using F Mective Interest Rate (ETR ) meshod.

mMuMm-i-mmMﬁmmummmﬂrmumﬂmwm
expected life of the Fimancial instruments ar, where appropriste, 8 shortes period.

3) Finnncial Asset st Fair Vilue throagh Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCT)
FmMMHM:wmuwmmmmimmmm
mlﬂdﬂm:hﬂmmﬂﬂ:@uﬂwhuhmhyhnﬁmlmh;mnnﬂmmhﬂnm:d
webling financinl assets and the contractual verms of the financisl asset give rise on specified dates i cash
Plows that are solely paymems of principal and imerest on Uhe principal artpatrl amitstnnwding. Subseguent o
imitial recognition, they are measured al fair value mwmnwmmnm
comprebemive income.

Fﬁuﬂwﬂmlﬂ}ﬂmllmF'hﬂ'ﬂ]hlhﬁhh‘lhlbfﬁlfm“-lﬂ-ﬂw
recagnition and imerest comatsts oF comiderutiun f e time valise of money and ussocisted credid risk



) m--ﬂm:rmurﬂrnhwm"hﬂ

Financlal Instnoments. which does Bot meet the criteria of amortised cost o fair value through other
wmﬂhwhtimn:tmiﬂﬂnf#ﬂ'ﬂummwhnanmnpiwﬂlﬁ
WHﬂWMhnmmmm“mnrpﬂhﬂh

) Impuirment of financksl assebs
Armmaﬂhmmqumhmmnmmmmumhhuﬁmh
hﬂﬂﬂﬂmhwﬂmrﬂﬂnﬁmwmﬂmmhﬂlwmﬂm
estimased furire cash flows of thal mset.

1hﬁm¢mﬂuhuﬂhumnqﬁmﬁdmnnmmdmmlmw
crodls losses If the credit rigk on that fmancial ingrument hay increised significantly smnce inftial
recognilion. Irﬂunmmlqnlﬂmh]wmmmmdﬂpm:-ﬂ:ﬂmiﬂﬂﬂ
mﬂﬂm.wcﬁmmmﬂnnmwwhﬂﬂuwhmﬂlumm]wm
ramth expected crodit lowses.

Howevet, for irade reccivables than result i relation to revemss from contracts with customers, the Group
mﬂnmmﬂmlmmﬂﬁhtmﬂﬁﬂmﬂpﬁiHEﬂlhﬂﬂ

#) Derccognition of financial instruments

The Group derecognizes 3 financial asset or & group of financipl asets when the contractusd rights to the
mﬂmﬁmﬂtmmﬁ,wmhmﬁum&mﬁlmﬂmmﬂ:Muﬂ
rewarda of owrieribip of he RESet o0 aRoIGCT party,

mmuhmﬂnmmu{ﬁap fur exqulty instruments designated as FYTOCT) the differenoe
whm'mmmuﬂhmulhmﬂuﬂhmﬂwﬂﬂmdvﬁhn

recognized in sintement of profil and kst

mwﬁnﬂmmmnml.hwphﬂhﬂm recognised |6
uﬁdmﬂm[wMinWM&mqﬂﬁmpnﬂwhﬂunmﬁmMﬂnﬁm

F'lﬂrh‘.hlIrﬁﬁtmmmhﬂillhﬁm’iﬂpﬁﬁmﬂhﬁlﬂmﬂnﬁuwn
discharged or cancelied. The difference between the camylng smount wf the fnancial lhshility
Wﬂnmﬂmmhmﬁmumnrmmm.

L loveniories
Invimtorses are valoed at lower of the oo ar estimated net reafisable valoe

Thumnhrup:lnfumﬁlhhdﬂmimdmﬂmuﬁumthnh!mmdhm-pﬂnl
Fimshd Geods and Stores and Spares determined on Weighted sverage basis. Maicrials and other
nmﬂhlhuhrmhﬂﬁpmdm&hmwmﬁﬂuﬂmm&hmifhﬂllﬂd
prodiscts in which they will be incorporaied are expected to be sold it or above cost.

Cost of raw mterials and sores and spares. includes the taves other than thase-recoverable from wmxing
ailorites snd expenses incidendal to the procurement of the same Cout in case of Finished goods
represents prisne cost and appeopriale portion of overheads.



Slock of Work in Progress inclades conversion or processing costs of material pending completion and
delivery io ihe cadomaer,

By-product and scrap is valued st net realisable valise.



m, Forelgn Corrency Tronsactbons

Preseniaiion Carrency

The Comsalidated financial ntements are presented in Indian Rupee, the natinnal currency of ndia. which
& the fanciional cumency of the Groap.

Trumsariinns and Balisces

Tipmuactions m foreign curmencies are tmmslated mto the functiomal cerrency a1 the exchange maes
peevailing on the dase of the ransactions. Forelgn currency mongtary sssets and (ishilites ot the year-end
are irnslsed a1 the year-end exchange rues. Mog-monctary e which are carvied i ierma of historical
cosl denominaiel in o foreign cunency are reported mang the eachange mte # the date of Iranspction,
Foreign exchange gain/loss to the exten considered as an adjusiment 1o Interest Cond are considersd
pan of borrowing cost. The loss or gain thereon end ko on the exchange differences on settiement of the
Foreign currency transactions during the vear are recognirzed i income of expenie in the datement ol
profit and lois.

n.  Equity Share Capital
An equity imstrment is a controct that evidences reskdanl interest in the msscts of the Group after deducting
abl af jes liabilities. Par value of the equity shares is recorded as share capinal and the amount recelved in.
excess of par vabue is classified a3 Securitiesfremium.

Costs directly sisributable to the issue of ondinary shares are recognised s & deduction from equity, et of
iy tax effects

o, Proviions, Contigent Lisbilites and Contingeni Assris
Provisions involving subsamtlal degree of sxtimation in measursment are revognized when thers s 8 legal
or constructive obligation as & result of past events and it s probable that there will be an outflow of
resources and o teliable estmate can be made of the amoumt of abligation. Provisions are not recognised
for fature wperating losses, The amount recognized =8 a provision @ the best estimate of the consideration
required 1o scntle the presens obligation @ the end of the reponing period.taking into scount the risks and
uncerminties sumounding the nbligation.

Continger lizbilities are not recognized end are disclosed by way of notes 1o the Comolidated financial
statements when there is o possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or pon-occurtence of one or more uncertain fiure everts not wholly
within the comtrol of the Group of when there & 8 present obligation that arises from past events where it s
gither not probable that an cutflow of rescarces will be requimed 1o senlle the sime or a relinble estimate of
the amownt in this respect cannot be mads

Comtingent assets are disciosad in the Consolidated Financial Statements by way of potes 10 sooounis
when an mflow of economic benefins (s prohable.
p.  Emplover Benefits



Employee benefits are accnied in the your in which services are rendered by the employees. Shont term
etnpliyee benedits are recognized @ an expense i the satement of profit snd loss for the vear in which the
related service is rendered,

Comtribution 10 defined comribution schemes such as Provident Fund s recognized as and when
mcmed

Long-term emphoves benefits defined benafit scheme sach o5 contribution w gratuity are determined at
chime of the year at present value of the amoint payoble using actuarial vahustion lechnigues.

Actunrial gain and losses ariting from expericnce adjustments and changes in actusrial assumptions are
recognized in ether comprebensive mcoms,

g Revenns

Revenue is recognized ai the fair value of consideration rocelved aor receivable when the significant risk
and rewards of goods Associated with the wnership of poasds have been translierred o services have been
rendered and the amoumt therenl can be measared reliably. Sales and conversion charges are iInclusive of
excise duty as applicable but net of Goods and Servicr Tax/sales tax valoe added tao service .

Drividend income is recognized when the right 1o receive payment b ectablinhed Imirest has been
sccounted wsing effective interest rate method. Revenue in respect of cluims of insurance, exports
incentives sic. are recognized only when there is reasonatrde certainty a3 10 the ubtimale collection.

In respect of construction contracts revenue s recognized on percentige completion baks when
completion level is minimum 0%, Completion level s the percentage of revenue earned for fotal contract
valug net of discount, Warranty cost, penalties or possibic losses that are dependent upon fussre events ane
recognized as and when these are sscenained ascertunable.

r. Barrowing Costs

Bormowing cosi comprises of interest and other costs incurred In connection with the borrowing of the
funds. All borrowing costs are recognised in the Statesvent of Profis mnd Loss using the effective interest
methad except 1o the oxtent attributable 10 qualifying Property Plamt and Equipmen {(PIPE) which are
capitlized to ihe cost of the related wssets. A qualifying PPE s an mseet, that necessarily tkes o
seihszantial period of tme 1o get reudy for {15 intended use or wle. Bormwing cost also includes exchange
dlifferences 10 the extent considered as an adjistment 1o the barrowing costs.

% Gwernmeni Grants

Government granls aie rocognized on sysemalic basis when there is reasonable certainty of realizathon of
the same. Revemue grants inclading subsidy rebaes are credined o Ststement of Profil ond Loss Account
under “Cither Income"or deducted from the related expenses for the period o which hese are related,
Grants which re meamt for purchase, consinuction or ofherwise fo sequire mon current sssets arc
recognired as Deferred Income and disclosed under Non Curment Lisbilities and transfierred 1o Ststement
of Profit and Loss on & systematic. basis over the uscfisl life of the respective axset, Girants relating to oon-
deprecinble nisets is iransferned 10 Sumemem of Profle and Loss over the periods that bear the cost af
meeting the oblignisons related 1o sich granis

L Taies on lmcome



Income tay expense representing the sum of current tax expenses and the et charge of the deferred tanes
i recognired in the statement of profit and loss excepl 1o the extent that It relates 10 lbems recognized
direetly in equity or other comprehensive income,

Current mcome tax s provided on the tinable income end recognired at the amount expecied 10 be paid 10
or recovered from the tax puthorities, wsing the tax rates and twx laws that have been emacted or
substantively enacied by the and of the reporting period.

Deéferred tax is recogmized on temparary diflerences between the carmying amounts of assets and linbilisies
m the Comsolidated Financial Sttements and the corresponding tax bases wsed in the computation of
mxable profit. Deferred tan liohilities are generally mecognised for all taable wemporary differences.
Deferred s assets are genevally recognized for olf deductible temporary differences 10 the extent that it is
probable that taxahle profits will be svailable againg which these deductible temporary differences can be
utilized.

Delerred tux linbilities and musets are measisred ot the tan rales that are expecied 1o apply in the period in
which the liabitity is settled or the asset resliged. based on tax rates (and tay laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amount of deferred tan sssets b reviewed ot the end of each reporiing period and reduced 1o
Hic gxbent that it is po fonger probable that wificient txable profies will be available to allow all ar part of
the defermod Tan nssst 1o be otilieed.

Deferred tnx assets include Minimum Aliemative Tax (MAT) measured in accordance with the ta laws in
India, wivich i likely 10 give fature economic benefits i the form of avallability of set ofT agxin fitine
income tax labslity and such bencfit can be mensared reliably and i is probable that the furure economic
benafit msoctaied with sme wil] be realized

i, Earnings Per Share
uhmwﬁmmmmnmwummwm%murm
Group by the weighted average number of equity shares oulstanding during the perind. Diluted eamings
per share i computed by dividing the net profil smribaable o the equity holders of the Croup by The
welghted avernge number of equity chares comsidensd for deriving hasic camings per share and nlso the
wielghied avernge manber of equity shares that could have been fssued wpon conversion of all dilutive
potentinl equiry shancs.

v, Segmeni Reporting

The Cirodp has ane operating buviness seygment viz, manufachiring. processing and sefling of sieei and
steel products comprising of engineering and other products and services and all other activities are
incidental 1o the same.

o Critheal sccounting jadgments. assumptions and key sources of estimation and uscertaingy

The peeparation of the Comaolidsied fnancial daiements o conformily with the meosmrement principle of
Il AS requines management o mahe edtimates, judgments and asumptions. These estimates, Judgments

and pssomptiom sffect the application of sccounting policies and the reported amouns of assets and
liabilities, the disclosures of contingent amsets and liabilities st the date of the Consolidated financial

sntements and reported amounts of revenues and expemien diring the period. Accomtng estimates coubd



change from period to period Actual results could differ from those ewtimates. Approprisie changes in
estimaies are made as managemen! becoitses aware of changes m crcumstances serounding the edimabes.
[hlferences besween the acrual resulls and estimeies ame rocignized i the veor inwhich the resulls are
krsvwn [ materialized ond, i material, their effects ane disclosed in the notes 1o the Consolidated financial
slalements

Application of accounting policics thal require significant areas of extimation, wncertainty and critical
Judgments and the use of assamptions in the Consolidated financial satements have been disclosed below.
The key assumptions concening the futwne and other key sources of estimation unceriainty al the Balance
Sheet date, that have a significant dsk of cawsing a material adjusoment m the corrying smounl of axset
urd Tibilities within the next fimancial veor are discussed below:

A Arrangements containing leuses wnd classification of leases

The deermination of lewse ond classification of the service ¢ hifing Erangement & o finapce lesie oF
operating lease is based on an assessment of several factors, including, but not limited 10, trunsfer of
ownership of keased ssset o end of lease term, lessee's option o mechase and cxtimated cerainry of
exercise of such option, propartion of bease term W the asset’s sconomic Hie. propomion of present value
of minimum lmse payments to fuir valee of leased asset and extent of specialiced nature of the lensed
(AL S

b, Deprecistion | smortizstion of and impairment loss on property, plast and equipment |
intangibibe gssets

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated and intangibbe msets are amonticed on srsight-fine basis
over the estmuied wseful lives (or bease term i shiner) in sccondence with Schedube || of the Comguankes
Act, 2013, iaking o sceount the estimated reskdual value. wherever applicable.

The Ciroup reviows Its carrying value of its Tangible und Intangible Assets whenever there is objective
evidence that v axseds are impaired. In ssch siunmon Asset’s recoverable amount s essimaisd which s
higher of asset’s or cash generating wnits' (COU) fair valee less cost of disposal and i value in ase. In
sasevsing value in use the extbmated finure cash lows are discounted wing pre-tax discount rete which
refloct the current msessnent of time value of money. In determining fair valise less cost of disposal,
recem marier reslmations sre considered or otherwise in absmce of wich transactions approprinte
valustions e odopeed. The Group reviews the exthimated wseful fives of the assets regularly im onder to
determine the umound of depreciation | mmontization and amount of impairment expense 1o be recorded
durinyg any reponting perios. This reassessment may result in change in such expenses in future perfods.

& Impairmesi low o8 irade receivabls

The Group evalustes wheother thete is any objective evidence thar irade recetvables are impained and
determines the amoumt of impairment allowance 45 a result of the inabllisy of the customers 1o mmke
required puymensts. The Group hases the estimates on the ageing of the trade recefvables balance, credi-
waorthinesy of the imde receivables and historical wedte-oiT expeciemce. 17 the financial conditiom of the
trade receivable were to deteriomle. sctual srite-affs woakd be higher than ssiimated.

. Income lnves
Significant judgment is required in determinotion of txability of cemam income and deductibility of
cerain expensed during the edtimation af the provision for income taves




e.  Defined benefit obligation (DGB)

Critical estimate of the DEO involves 8 humber of critical umderlying ssssmptions such us sandard rases
of inflation, morulity, discount rate, snticipation of future salary incresses clc my estimated by
Mwwwm%mwhm?uiﬂmhmmmy
ﬂﬂfﬂrhﬂhﬁﬂmﬂﬂ;mﬂﬂmﬂhﬁm

E Provisioos aod Conlingencies
Pamhhumﬂﬁlhuhhnmﬁmmhpnﬂiﬂmnmmmﬂﬁmﬂhlﬂm
nﬂmaﬂhﬂ:uﬂn;ﬂmpﬂmhwaﬂ:mﬂhmufmmmhrd%
extimaied. The timing of recognition and yuantificotson of the
MWMMMHMHnm;MN:MﬂH:mhmu
change.

Muanngement judgment is required for etimating the possible outflow. of rewsrees, W amy, i respect of
contingencies/c laim/litigations agsine the Group & it s not possible to predict the cutcome of pending
miaitery with pecuraey,

The carrying amoams of provisions and labilities and estimation for comingencies are reviewed regularly
andd revised o ke nccount of changing facts and circumstances
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Mntei ba the Canunlidated Fineacisl Statomenty

I Mevenue from Operatiom Amount in By
For the year enied | Far the yese endesd
r—_— Nowhe | noaams 31,00, 2017
in} |Sabe of Goods
Sale of Produet 5.05.H8.17.557 415 1118657
Salw of Traded Goods . 16.3% gooa
o} |Sabe of Servioes
Conwaruon incame 3,84 £ 04 388 3.78,34.47, 738
il |Other Dparating Hevenue
Tremporaton Charged Redowensd h,n,m ﬁm:'l_
5,801,791 488 1,T8.42.92.175

i1 Goods and Seevicns Tas ("G5T7) hat Been implevenbed with effect from 10 haty, JOLT and twrplove, Revende from operatioe
sy e paciod baty 1, JOLT siv §1al Marth FDIR ew nat o 057 Revenowe om Opssations and sapasies foe the year snded 31
Mareh 1) 7 baing inciutive ol Excivg m“mmﬂmhmﬁmm”dunmﬁnummu

-h-ir!m

X¥  Dther income Ammoint in K.
For the yosr ended | Fosr the year onded
Partiuler Mt Mo 11032018 51082017
(] |t on deposts BB 80,975 BLILELE
i} |Amortistion of Fanancial inssrumssm EREE NN i 13,75 540
el | fsrmrrimanit Granst TR, 14,20 533
() |Pralit on wale of Property, Mant e Egidgmant 58204411
el |Lisbilitess i donger reguinsd wertten back E RN L
M [empairmen Slowenies Ror Derultful Dedts writien Bk - 5,97, 4
LEl  |smurance Olern Recesed » 4,04, 154
fh} | MGiealisnaous meome LB 78,706 11S.89,173
LT e
IR Coat of Materialy Conusmad Armpant in L
Fiar thn yemr gedad | For the year ended
reriry Neteo. | 5100200 $1.08,2017
Amw Maierian Consmed 5.50,00,89, 154 4546715119
550,00 59, 304 AT 1S 11E
Ea ) Hﬂ'ﬁ'—lhiﬂﬁ'mm-lﬁhmniw Amoant in s,
For the year ended | For the year ended
Porticulers Moteo. | Ty oxaoue 31003017
$aock @i e end of the pear
Hrevhel Goed &1 26 L0467 48,16, 10685
‘Work n Progren LI7.290 5,26 T3
S i Trage =
| Srrag - 1,3,606
61, 34,45.757 45.22.91,059
Sioch i i Beginning of ihe year
Firwihed Gy &9 16 19 kA5 47,1571 480
Work i Prognesi 5.6, 194 404041
ek ir Trade . LBBa 57
Serag 1L LELE A4 Bk
9,21,91.003 47,7385, TR
ﬁ_yh-hhn-hiuim-ﬂ.M-hlﬁ (1011 54,5589 (14940871




Fates o the Consolideted Fanascial Statensents

BT e i Amowntin R
1 For thie wear ended | For te year ended
e et M. _ 3i.0u208 31802007
() ke and wages 17,88.30,157 14.F7.76,5%)
B [Contimitkan to prcvident find 1 LE0 6L 237 131,65, 798
ol [uial welfsre sapemes 9076, T1T .54 M az)
Mamiar|  iaiazesn
B Fnance Armicant in Mg
| #ou thes year ended | Fos the year ended
I Iuota o 31002008 31833087
(@ |mmepat Expends LERE KT E L EAT ]
by |Crther Borrowing Costs 5 AL ER IE7 1R AT.0%1
A6, 73,7182 47,13 62,156
12 Onker Fupences Amesund in Bx,
Farihe year endedl | For the ymar ended
porn— [neta vo 31.00.2018 11.03.2017
la) |Consurrption of sioies #nd Abares 30.74,07, 346 F765.56. 718
] |Power and Fusi §1,20,57 087 FLIL57.263
[c) |Foni 36 152,18 485 238 7 Bk
ifi  |“epain e
Phaed il machunaey 1056, 148 2563877
Businnga 1350531 &5 106
o 515,714,050 02N a5
(e} |Inmuranca 565,70, 750 4.9 57T
i} |amorioebon of Lessshoss Frapaymant 840,509 )
{g) [Retos wd Tanes m 15,9455 21 L28.20.45]
[hl | Tennaporintion Crames Pad 21,64, 11168 20,33.81523
i} Fomiyras ilign 264,45 500 EETRLT
1] g 509,62 577 550, 75 580
() [Escise duty paid and om skeck 314,959,853 18T ki
il [Bank Chaege 2,77,00, 267 L N8 A3 T
im)  [Teaveling scsl corveyince 2,06, 94, i) LELANNT9
ini  [Lisgal amd peofeakanal fees 1,31.06.093 350,648,111
o) [Becuiy Charges 58,59, 048 i, (12254
lp  |Esshangs GoeemlLos 33,77, 744 19LE56) |
foi |Telsphors snd commwnicaion 025,003 MI2EER
{rj [Hew Chanps 42.50,330 59,51 158
I8} |Aseming ond ceiss peamalian 4R, 50,230 0,
D [Pamant i Aadee 32y 18,530,000 130e. 5%
[uf  |Loms on invesimests in Subsidisn - Hald for saie 14.1 1271730 =
vl | i ang Penasy LL R L] i 04 05
(w] |Midallanacus spenes X3 LHERLEST 10,9738, 066
1,65.01, 70, 197 149 34, 70 864




131 Payment 10 Sweditor inciudes: ienesand in Ba,
Partion For Thas Weur Eaded | For Tha Tear Ended
| i Masch 11, 2018 March B, 2017
{a) [Mdit Faed 11,40, 530 L0E 625
i e At P 0,000 LA
o) |Eerifcaion amd othar reporty i, 50000 000
id) |Pesmburkement of sepenses 3 75,200
PR 18,50,000 13,054,825
13 1.1 Includes Poyment (o Previout dadiior - Amaunt b B,
particul E" For The Year Ended | For The Yaur Ended
- March ¥, 30id March ¥1, 2017
ja) A Fees & 25,000
bl | Tan Audit P 75,p00
fe]  (Comfiention and other repoaris TO.000
[} |Renbussenent of oopenses T5.200 |
11,43 200
EER  inchudes Ks. 143859 162 (Previcas year B85, ) Diing payment made to Sales Tix suthodisies ursder Tetlement of Disputs
e
313 Macelleneous epensss mnciode i RELA87 (Prevoun Year As 12,40, %54) baing Sundry Ralsnies not recoversbii and wrinen
ol
324 m-mnmﬂmgm 11 on "Comuiructon Contract” m foliows:
|u-um Foi Tha Vear Ended | For Tha Year Ended
March 31, 3018 | March 32, 2017
I ERL1ES B 15537
14,44 867 £1.53.070
iamaount im
For the yeur ended | For the year ensded
Mete N0 | March3nonn | srch 3007
331 205782718 5,32 04 281 |
20,5743,718 3.3, 94.201
For the year gnded | For the year emted
Ehreaiy March 11,2018 March 31,2047
Cirrpid e 20,728 Bed B0 THSGE
Detarrid tan - Charge/|Credit] b SERE ) 33,157
Tatsl tas expense recogrased in the tarrent yes 20,57 82,714 | 9,32 54 284




13.2 Reconcillation of income Tax Expenses for the year with accaunting profit as follows:

Taatiy Wesme difen Trom proft belor e i fepodied e slalemen of profl s s Bacase of dame of s ar
THNES (e are Loty or deduciibis i pihes sears and Sems Mal G Sever taxabie o dedicsbin Detaiin i in rédses ane s
tlicsik

Ammani in By
For the year entded | For the year ended
Firk March 31,2008 | March 31,2007
Profit Detore tax T.00,48, 032 AL 51 85 DS
hmnmmnmm-lﬂiﬂm J4,81 54 BES 85 33, Tas
Adldd, Effect of Experun thal are nat dedurmilie in determining tussbln profs
Enperings rorl Ehmmg 00 129 gl 1,80, 088 126 1A ASE
Crpracinba (4 oneaeil = B hooka, ol Arzount 1054, 259
Cestaint wagmeres 11 bee adowed on paymesT Do T8 3d 065 11715
lﬂmﬂmmnhmmﬂmlnmllﬁmﬂhﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ
17 52064
Leat ¢ tMect of Dapeneeiscorme (ar are deductiBle) nof Gaasble
daberminkey tasakie gewfiy
Degrmciation oy per Incomes (e ALt 1941 LT 4D AT JAT0EE
Effect of sty adjusimenia 2331 e 458,21 3%
bt ot of prolit fros boought fareend pnatuortied B loies 20,01 284 :
St off of ol o brocght Toveand uatsorhes deprepiatos 1,80, 054
¥t ol laasr ta Fart o Sl ry . T
Income Tax recognised in profit and Jom HATELTE 9.32.54 281

n-r.-rmm#wrlwmhnmuMuMnmhmmmmmmmmlmafh

333 income Tax recognissd in Cibwr Comprbsnsie inpoms

Aoyt b Ay
Fof the year ended  For the year ended
Fa— March 31,2008 March 31,2007
Eberrwd kaw [chasge )l Crmds on
Rempasyrgenent of defined bansty ablgaton {1727 387 7,30 458 |
Tetal indome s recagnihed other comprehenwe mcsms (17.27,.28T) T.350.588
Mﬂhmhm-mmmﬁ-
N Rt will B rechinedl s 1o prads o ioaa .
e thar will panl b eedtanasfand 1s preds & boas [17,27,387| T 3LEEE
13.4 Componarnts of Omar Compretmnsies Insams
Ao i R
Fiot i yiar ended  For the year ended
—— lhd:!l_&l lln:h._'l_lﬂﬂﬂ
T it will ot b rec e fiad 1o prodit oF (leas)
Aemaisuneendn] of dafined Denet abigaton el of Tasg X3 5a AEs 13,66

o i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42.4 Reconcillation of Total Comprehensive incame for the year ended March 31, 2017

Amount in Rs.
Fae the year
|Particulars MNotes | ended March 31,
2017
1] Net Profit under previous GAAP 35,37,93,171
Adjusiments
Increasn in other mcome as per Efleoinee intenesis Mathad 68, 336
Increase in Fmance Costs as per Elective interest Method {3.46,51 836)
Efect ol presant value of fmancial instruments 4 4T 35 B18
Effect of de-recognitson of lnase rentaly (23,24, 128)
Gair on sdjustrent for grafuity amount recogrized in other comprehensive
R 2130723
Recognition of deflered tan on assel base of Property, Plant & Equipment (2. 78.57.318)
g aihiers
2] Total Effect an Conversion to lnd AS {1,78,98,407)
3| Net profit for the period under Ind AS (1+2) 33,58,94,764
4| Other Comprehansive Income for the period {net of tax) 334 (13,599,835}
5| Total Comprehensive Income under ind A% [3+4) 33,44,94,929

415 Reconciliation of Statement of Cath Flow for the year ended March 31, 2017
There were no matenial ditférences between the Statement of Cash Flows presented under IND AS
and the previous GAAP,
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